
 

 

 
Mr. Richard Braun 
Chief Financial Officer 
Olean General Hospital 
515 Main Street 
Olean, NY 14760 

Date: September 12, 2017 
RE: CON 172084  
                                                                          
Olean General Hospital 
(Cattaraugus County) 

 
Dear Mr. Braun: 
 
Bureau of Financial Analysis review of the above application has revealed the need for 
additional information, as requested in the enclosure.  In preparing answers to the questions, 
please repeat each question and then provide the answer.  Please submit your response via your 
New York State Electronic Certificate of Need account within 14 days from the date of this letter 
in accordance with 10 NYCRR 710.3(a). 
 
Processing your application by the Bureau of Financial Analysis cannot be completed until the 
information is received and reviewed.  If this project requires review by the Public Health and 
Health Planning Council, such review may be delayed if the requested information is not timely 
received.  Accordingly, while you have 14 days to respond, you are encouraged to submit the 
response at your earliest opportunity.  Responses that result in corrections or revisions to specific 
CON Schedules (e.g. Schedules 8, 9 and 13) must be uploaded to the appropriate schedule 
location within the CON application. 
  
The following information is required to complete the review for the above referenced 
application: 

1. Please submit the current organizational chart before and after full asset merger takes 
place.  

2. Please confirm that UAHS and Bradford will upon approval, submit a resolution to 
dissolve the Master Affiliation Agreement. 

3. Please confirm that all the boards including Kaleida are mirror.  Also, please note any 
active parent status and grandparent status. 

4. Note that once Bradford and the Corporation complete the full asset merger, Upper 
Allegheny Health System, Inc. will become (the “Member”). 

5. Schedule #3, (Attachment #3) indicates UAHS organizational chart. Please describe 
Kaleida Health’s Governance over UAHS. If all have Mirror Boards, please state this 
and describe the relationships with each other in detail. 



 

 

6. Please provide the operating certificate for Bradford, indicating services, beds.  The 
2016 certified for the (2) stated facilities that will merge.  Please note if there will be 
any efficiencies, cost reductions or revenue enhancements in detail due to this merger. 

7. Schedule 13-B1 is the staffing portion of this document.  Please indicate the current 
staffing for each facility, the year one and year three incremental staffing for each 
facility.   

8. Please ensure that the active parent status agrees with current 10NYCRR 405.1(c). 
  

If you have any questions or need assistance, please contact me at 518-474-0957.  
 
Philip LaCombe, Associate Fiscal Analyst 
Division of Health Economics and Provider Assistance 
Bureau of Financial Analysis 
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BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2015 2014

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 714,066$           1,420,783$      

Assets limited as to use - current (Note 3) 804,015             973,554          

Accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of

  $3,036,000 and $1,486,000 8,133,954          9,796,688        

Other receivables 2,299,951          1,828,232        

Supplies 1,697,521           1,792,557        

Prepaid expenses 721,905             954,087          

14,371,412         16,765,901      

Property and equipment, net (Note 2) 26,953,529        27,836,774      

Assets limited as to use (Note 3) 11,268,702         10,980,149      

Other assets, net 1,340,890          1,464,752        

53,934,533$      57,047,576$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (Note 4) 1,999,669$        1,999,669$      

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 1,545,430          1,378,580        

Accounts payable 6,184,760          8,908,976        

Accrued expenses 4,319,054          4,499,311        

Estimated third-party payor settlements 418,322             624,024          

14,467,235        17,410,560      

Long-term debt (Note 5) 14,944,184         15,680,175      

Accrued pension liability (Note 6) 14,938,128         11,782,593      

Net assets:

Unrestricted 9,294,109          11,811,507      

Temporarily restricted (Note 7) 138,262             210,126          

Permanently restricted (Note 7) 152,615             152,615          

9,584,986          12,174,248      

53,934,533$      57,047,576$    

See accompanying notes. 2



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Unrestricted revenue:

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts) 62,032,516$    69,999,932$     

Less:  provision for bad debts (1,549,877)       (2,520,434)       

Net patient service revenue 60,482,639      67,479,498       

Other revenue 4,296,225        4,220,347         

Total unrestricted revenue 64,778,864      71,699,845       

Expenses:

Salaries 26,288,385      28,996,608       

Employee benefits 6,175,614        6,941,196         

Purchased services 10,900,960      10,634,958       

Professional fees 2,263,606        2,455,661         

Supplies 8,285,656        9,235,768         

Other 6,849,609        7,356,380         

Depreciation and amortization 3,068,162        3,003,404         

Interest 863,086           997,835           

Total expenses 64,695,078      69,621,810       

Income from operations 83,786            2,078,035         

Other income:

Investment income 161,355           876,985           

Contributions and other, net                  (309,608)         80,906             

Total other income, net (148,253)         957,891           

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (64,467)           3,035,926         

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (225,572)         (703,509)          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (Note 11) 1,852,000        -                      

Pension liability adjustment (Note 6) (4,177,729)       (4,811,899)       

Net assets released from restrictions (Note 7) 98,370            441,912           

Change in unrestricted net assets (2,517,398)$     (2,037,570)$      

See accompanying notes. 3



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (64,467)$         3,035,926$       

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (225,572)         (703,509)          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital 1,852,000        -                      

Pension liability adjustment (4,177,729)       (4,811,899)       

Net assets released from restrictions 98,370            441,912           

Change in unrestricted net assets (2,517,398)       (2,037,570)       

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions received 26,506            474,103           

Net assets released from restrictions (98,370)           (441,912)          

Change in temporarily restricted net assets (71,864)           32,191             

Change in net assets (2,589,262)      (2,005,379)       

Net assets - beginning 12,174,248      14,179,627       

Net assets - ending 9,584,986$      12,174,248$     

See accompanying notes. 4



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Operating activities:

Change in net assets (2,589,262)$  (2,005,379)$   

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows

  from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 3,068,162      3,003,404      

Provision for bad debts 1,549,877      2,520,434      

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (1,852,000)    -                   

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments 94,462          (119,256)       

Pension liability adjustment 4,177,729      4,811,899      

Net change in other current assets and current liabilities:

Accounts receivable 112,857         (3,085,650)     

Other receivables (471,719)        (284,540)       

Supplies 95,036          (121,330)       

Prepaid expenses 232,182         242,281         

Accounts payable (1,166,771)     (961,477)       

Accrued expenses (1,202,451)     (2,030,035)     

Estimated third-party payor settlements (205,702)       192,741         

Net operating activities 1,842,400      2,163,092      

Investing activities:

Property and equipment purchases (963,273)       (1,470,139)     

Assets limited as to use (213,476)       726,983         

Other assets 83,885          (619,560)       

Net investing activities (1,092,864)    (1,362,716)     

Financing activities:

Net short-term borrowings -                   7,669            

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt -                   1,000,000      

Principal payments on long-term debt (1,456,253)    (1,088,073)     

Net financing activities (1,456,253)    (80,404)         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (706,717)       719,972         

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,420,783      700,811         

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 714,066$       1,420,783$    

See accompanying notes. 5
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BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Organization:

The accompanying financial statements include the 
accounts of Bradford Hospital (the Medical Center) and its 
controlled subsidiaries, Bradford Health Enterprises 
(BHE) and Bradford Hospital Foundation (BHF). All 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have 
been eliminated in the accompanying financial statements.  

The Medical Center and its subsidiaries provide acute 
inpatient, outpatient, long-term nursing care, and home 
care services primarily to residents of Northwest 
Pennsylvania. 

Upper Allegheny Health System (UAHS), a not-for-profit 
management holding corporation, is the sole corporate 
member of the Medical Center.  UAHS is also the sole 
member of Olean General Hospital, a nearby not-for-
profit New York hospital and healthcare system.  

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly 
liquid brokerage money market accounts.  Cash and cash 
equivalents in financial institutions potentially subject the 
Medical Center to concentrations of credit risk since they 
may exceed insured limits at various times throughout the 
year.

Patient Accounts Receivable:

Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for 
doubtful accounts.  In evaluating the collectibility of patient 
accounts receivable, the Medical Center analyzes its past 
history and identifies trends for each of its major payor 
sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for 
doubtful accounts and provision for bad debts. Management
regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of 
revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for 
doubtful accounts.
  

For receivables associated with services provided to patients 
who have third-party coverage, the Medical Center analyzes 
contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for 
doubtful accounts and a provision for bad debts, if 
necessary (for example, for expected uncollectible 
deductibles and copayments on accounts for which the 
third-party payor has not yet paid, or for payors who are 
known to have financial difficulties that make the realization 
of amounts due unlikely). For receivables associated with 
self-pay patients (which includes both patients without 
insurance and patients with deductible and copayment 
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part 
of the bill), the Medical Center records a significant 
provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis 
of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are 
unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which 
they are financially responsible.  The difference between the 
standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the 
amounts actually collected after all reasonable collection 
efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the 
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Supplies:

Supplies include pharmaceuticals, medical and surgical 
supplies and food service stock, and are stated at the lower 
of first-in, first-out cost or market.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is stated at cost or fair market value 
at the date of donation, net of accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over 
estimated service lives.
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Certain of the Medical Center’s property contains asbestos.  
Accordingly, the Medical Center is legally obligated to 
remediate the asbestos upon the related assets’ retirement or
disposal.  Because the Medical Center has no plans or 
expectations of plans to undertake a major renovation that 
would require removal of the asbestos or demolition of the 
property, the fair value of the liability can not be estimated 
with reasonable certainty.  Additionally, the Medical Center’s 
property is expected to be maintained by repairs and 
maintenance activities that would not involve the removal of 
the asbestos, and the need for major renovations caused by 
technology changes, operational changes, or other factors 
has not been identified.  When such an estimate of the 
liability’s fair value can be made, it will be established and the 
carrying value of the property will be increased by a 
corresponding amount.

Assets Limited As To Use:

Assets limited as to use include assets held by trustees for 
debt service and construction, pledges receivable, assets 
restricted by donors, and assets set aside by the Board of
Directors for future capital improvements over which the 
Board retains control and may at its discretion subsequently 
use for other purposes.  Amounts required to meet current 
liabilities of the Medical Center are included in current assets.

Investments within assets limited as to use represent 
marketable securities stated at fair value as determined by
quoted prices in active markets.  

Investments are classified as “available for sale.”  
Investment income or loss (including realized gains and 
losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included 
in excess of revenue over expenses unless the income or 
loss is restricted by donor or law.  Unrealized gains and 
losses on investments are excluded from the excess of 
revenue over expenses.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has 
been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. 
Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by 
donors to be maintained by the Medical Center in perpetuity. 

Net Patient Service Revenue:

The majority of the Medical Center’s total patient service 
revenue is derived from patients admitted under Medicare, 
Medicaid and other third-party insurance programs.  The 
Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that 
provide for payments to the Medical Center at amounts 
different from its established rates.

The Medical Center recognizes patient services revenue 
associated with services provided to patients who have third-
party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the 
services rendered.  For uninsured patients that do not qualify 
for charity care, the Medical Center recognizes revenue on 
the basis of its standard rates for services provided (or on 
the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided by 
policy).  On the basis of historical experience, a significant 
portion of the Medical Center’s uninsured patients will be 
unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided.  Thus, 
the Medical Center records a significant provision for bad 
debts related to uninsured patients in the period the services 
are provided. 

Payment arrangements include prospectively determined 
rates per discharge and other service units, reimbursed costs, 
discounted charges, and per diem payments.  Net patient 
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable 
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for 
services rendered, including estimated retroactive 
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an 
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered 
and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined.

Revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs 
accounted for approximately 40% (41% for 2014) and 21% 
(22% for 2014), respectively, of the Medical Center’s net 
patient revenue for the year ended December 31, 2015.  
Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs are extremely complex and subject to 
interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable 
possibility that recorded estimates will change.

Charity Care:

The Medical Center provides care to patients who meet 
certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge or 
at amounts less than its established rates.  Because the 
Medical Center does not pursue collection of amounts 
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as 
revenue.

The estimated costs of services and supplies furnished under 
the Medical Center’s charity care policy, determined based 
on a ratio of cost to charges calculation, aggregated 
approximately $205,000 and $209,000 in 2015 and 2014.  
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Donor-Restricted Gifts:

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the 
Medical Center are reported at fair value at the date the 
promise is received.  The gifts are reported as either 
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are 
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the 
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose 
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets 
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of operations as net assets released from 
restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose 
restrictions are met within the same year as received are 
reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying 
financial statements.

Unrestricted contributions recognized in both 2015 and 
2014 totaling $2,000,000 are in other revenue on the 
accompanying statements of operations.

Tax Status:

The Medical Center and BHF are 501(c)(3) organizations
exempt from income taxes under Section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. BHE is subject to State and Federal 
income taxes, however activity to date has not been 
significant.  The entities believe they are no longer subject to 
examination by Federal and State taxing authorities for years 
prior to 2012.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.

Meaningful Use Incentive Payments:

To promote more effective (quality) and efficient healthcare 
delivery through the use of technology, the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) established 
incentive payments under the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs for certain professionals and hospitals that 
“meaningfully use” certified electronic health record (EHR) 
technology by 2014.  To qualify for incentives, hospitals and 
physicians must meet EHR “meaningful use” criteria during 
the period, as defined.  The incentive payments are paid out 
over a multi-year period on a transitional schedule.  

The Medical Center recognizes revenue when it determines it
has complied with the minimum number of “meaningful 
use” objectives and other specific requirements that are 
applicable during the specific EHR reporting period.  Based 
on the Medical Center’s evaluation process, $433,000 and 
$705,000 has been recognized as grant revenue in 2015 and 
2014, and presented as other revenue on the accompanying 
statements of operations. Estimated receivables at December 
31, 2015 and 2014 total $605,000 and $287,000 and are 
included in other receivables on the accompanying balance 
sheets. 

The amount of grant revenue recognized is based on 
management’s best estimate, and the amounts are subject to 
change.  Additionally, the awards are subject to audit by the 
federal government or its designee.

Subsequent Events:

The Medical Center has evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial 
statements through June 14, 2016, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses:

The statements of operations include excess of revenue 
over expenses.  Changes in unrestricted net assets which 
are excluded from excess of revenue over expenses, 
consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains 
and losses on investments other than trading securities,
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired 
using contributions which by donor restriction were for the
purpose of acquiring such assets), and certain adjustments 
to the Medical Center’s actuarially determined pension 
liability.

2.  Property and Equipment:

2015 2014
Land and improvements 2,516,417$     2,481,167$      
Buildings and improvements 48,136,100     47,936,355      
Equipment and furnishings 23,673,028     21,662,996      
Construction in progress 431,016          534,103          

74,756,561     72,614,621      
Less accumulated depreciation 47,803,032     44,777,847      

26,953,529$   27,836,774$    

Depreciation expense totaled $3,028,185 in 2015 and 
$2,978,354 in 2014.
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Construction in progress includes expenditures related to a 
variety of projects for computer upgrades and facility 
renovations.

3.  Assets Limited As To Use:

2015 2014
Investments:

Internally designated 8,750,628$    8,165,354$     
Externally designated 186,130         225,490         
Held by trustee for 

for long-term debt 2,197,697      2,352,733      
11,134,455     10,743,577     

Less amount required to meet
current obligations 465,753        621,012         

10,668,702    10,122,565     

Pledges receivable 938,262        1,210,126      
Less estimated current portion 338,262        352,542         

600,000        857,584         
11,268,702$  10,980,149$   

Investment components:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,561,520$    5,538,846$     
U.S. Government securities 1,483,620      858,007         
Common stock 1,811,187       2,044,542      
Mutual funds 2,139,751      2,118,928      
Corporate obligations 138,377         183,254         

11,134,455$   10,743,577$   

The following summarizes investment return and its 
classification in the statements of operations and changes in 
net assets:

2015 2014
Investment income:

Dividends and interest 30,245$         54,220$          
Net realized gains 131,110           822,765          

161,355$        876,985$        

Change in unrealized gains and 
losses on investments (225,572)$      (703,509)$       

The Medical Center evaluates its holdings of available for 
sale investments for other-than-temporary declines in fair 
value below the cost basis.  If an investment is determined to 
have an other-than-temporary decline in fair value, the 
unrealized losses for the investment are recognized in 
investment income. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, there 
were no significant instances of gross unrealized losses that 
required evaluation for other-than-temporary declines in fair 
value. 

4.  Short-Term Borrowings:

2015 2014
$2,000,000 bank demand working

capital line of credit, interest at
prime plus 1/8%, secured by
certain investments. 1,999,669$   1,999,669$    

The bank agreements are subject to general review and 
renewal procedures.

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Medical Center had 
$585,000 of irrevocable standby letters of credit related to 
professional liability insurance payments.  No amounts were 
outstanding on these letters of credit.

5.  Long-Term Debt:

2015 2014
McKean County Hospital

Authority Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2005. 14,490,000$  15,580,000$  

Bank term loan, consistent with
$1,000,000 pledge receivable
estimated repayment timing, 
annual principal payments of 
$200,000 are due.  Interest is  
payable quarterly at 4%. 800,000        1,000,000      

Equipment finance loans, varying
monthly installments and interest
rates through June 2021,
secured by related equipment. 1,199,614      478,755         

16,489,614    17,058,755    
Less current portion 1,545,430     1,378,580      

14,944,184$  15,680,175$  

The McKean County Hospital Authority Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2005 (the “2005 Bonds”) in the original amount of 
$23,330,000 bear interest at 3.50% to 5.25%, are due in 
graduated installments through October 1, 2030, and are 
secured by a pledge of and security in the gross revenues of 
the Medical Center.  

The 2005 Bonds are insured by ACA Financial Guaranty 
Corporation (ACA), and the bond agreements contain 
various financial ratios and covenants with which the 
Medical Center is required to comply.  These financial ratios 
include the maintenance of a debt service coverage ratio and 
days’ cash on hand.  At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the 
Medical Center did not comply with certain covenants.  On 
June 14, 2016 and May 14, 2015, waivers were obtained for 
the appropriate periods, and the loans are presented at 
December 31, 2015 and 2014 according to original terms.  
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Aggregate maturities on long-term debt subsequent to 
December 31, 2015 are:

2016 1,545,430$   
2017 1,628,300     
2018 1,683,722     
2019 1,740,007     
2020 1,529,735     

Thereafter 8,362,420    
16,489,614$ 

6.  Pension Plans:

The Medical Center has a noncontributory defined benefit 
pension plan covering substantially all employees active 
through March 31, 2011.  The Medical Center’s policy is to 
contribute on an annual basis an amount equal to the 
minimum funding standards of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974.  

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes 
in the projected benefit obligation and fair value of assets 
for years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, and a 
statement of the funded status as of December 31, 2015 and 
2014.  The measurement dates are December 31, 2015 and 
2014:

2015 2014
Change in projected benefit obligation:
  Projected benefit obligation at
    beginning of period 29,182,435$  25,035,114$  
  Interest cost 1,147,511      1,228,242      
  Actuarial loss 2,618,871      3,847,141      
  Benefits paid (976,038)      (928,062)       
  Projected benefit obligation at
   end of period 31,972,779   29,182,435    

Change in plan assets:
  Fair value of plan assets at

    beginning of period 17,399,842   17,243,063    
  Actual return on plan assets (574,477)      144,160         
  Employer contributions 1,185,324      940,681         
  Benefits paid (976,038)      (928,062)       
  Fair value of plan assets at

    end of period 17,034,651    17,399,842    

Funded status of the plan (14,938,128)$ (11,782,593)$ 

Accrued pension liability (14,938,128)$ (11,782,593)$ 

Accumulated benefit obligation 31,972,779$  29,182,435$  

The projected benefit obligation is the actuarial present 
value as of the measurement date of all benefits attributed 
by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered
prior to that date.  The projected benefit obligation is 
measured using assumptions as to future compensation 
levels, which no longer applies to the Medical Center.

The accumulated benefit obligation is the actuarial present 
value of benefits (whether vested or nonvested) attributed 
by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered
before a specified date and based on employee service and 
compensation prior to that date.  The accumulated benefit 
obligation is currently the same as the projected benefit 
obligation because an assumption about future 
compensation levels no longer applies to the Medical 
Center.

2015 2014
Components of net periodic

benefit cost:
Interest cost 1,147,511$   1,228,242$   
Expected return on plan assets (1,336,448)   (1,307,784)    
Recognized net actuarial loss 352,067       198,866        
  Net periodic pension cost 163,130$      119,324$      

Amounts recognized as accumulated adjustment to 
unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Net loss 17,657,997$  13,480,268$   

The following amount included in accumulated adjustment
to unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2015 is expected 
to be recognized in expense during 2016:

Amortization of net loss 352,067$   

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2015 and 2014:

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.25% 4.00%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions to determine periodic benefit 
cost:

2015 2014
Discount rate 4.00% 5.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A
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The most recent expected long-term rate of return on assets 
assumption is 7.50%.  This assumption represents the rate of 
return on plan assets reflecting the average rate of earnings 
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide 
for the benefits included in the benefit obligation. The 
assumption has been determined by reflecting expectations 
regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio, 
with consideration given to the distribution of investments 
by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual 
asset class.

The Medical Center’s pension plan weighted-average assets 
allocation at December 31, 2015 and 2014 and the target 
allocation, by asset category, are as follows:

Target
Allocation 2015 2014

Asset category:
Cash equivalents       - 8% 4%
Equity securities 40% 38% 39%
Debt securities 25% 22% 21%
Flexible capital 20% 12% 13%
Inflation hedging 15% 20% 23%

100% 100% 100%

The plan’s overall portfolio mix of equity securities, fixed 
income (debt) securities, and other investments is based 
upon asset allocation modeling taking into consideration 
historical return patterns and risk factors.  The investment 
strategy for plan assets is to emphasize total return from 
capital appreciation, and dividend and interest income.  The 
plan trustees believe the current mix of plan assets provides 
an appropriate level of return to achieve current assumed 
return plan assumptions.  All of the plan’s investments are 
actively managed.

The plan invests in two limited partnerships (inflation 
hedging investments) and a common collective trust (flexible 
capital investments) for the purpose of investing in real 
estate and international markets. Investments in these items
are valued at fair value based on the plan’s proportionate 
share of net assets at the valuation date, or net asset value 
(NAV).  The plan’s ownership interests are valued in good 
faith by the plan administrator based on the fair values of the 
investment interests of the underlying assets and may 
consider other factors such as ownership percentage, 
ownership rights, and distribution provisions. Limited 
partnership investments may only be redeemed annually with 
notice of 65 - 90 days.

The plan’s other investments are valued based on quoted 
prices in active markets.

Investment assets at fair value are categorized based upon 
the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to 
measure their fair value.  The fair values of plan investment 
assets are as follows as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Quoted
Prices in

Active
2015 Markets NAV

Cash equivalents 1,303,615$   -$                
Equity securities 6,448,957    -                  
Debt securities 3,788,266    -                  
Flexible capital -                  1,968,975    
Inflation hedging -                  3,524,838    

11,540,838$ 5,493,813$  

Based on

Quoted
Prices in
Active

2014 Markets NAV
Cash equivalents 740,483$      -$                
Equity securities 6,789,896     -                  
Debt securities 3,685,741     -                  
Flexible capital -                  2,299,029     
Inflation hedging -                  3,884,693     

11,216,120$ 6,183,722$   

Based on

The Medical Center expects to contribute $1,332,000 to its 
pension plan during the annual period ending December 31, 
2016.

The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

2016 1,022,000$     
2017 1,054,000      
2018 1,156,000       
2019 1,282,000      
2020 1,378,000      

Thereafter through 2025 8,317,000      
14,209,000$   
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The Medical Center froze the defined benefit pension plan 
effective April 1, 2011 by freezing all participant benefits as 
of that date.  An enhanced defined contribution Section 
403(b) savings incentive plan replaced the pension benefits.  
Total expense related to this plan amounted to $909,000 and 
$1,188,000 for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

7.  Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the
following purposes or periods at December 31, 2015 and 
2014:

2015 2014
Property and equipment 90,336$      97,985$       
Time restricted 41,165         102,730       
Other purposes 6,761          9,411           

138,262$     210,126$     

Income from permanently restricted net assets is 
unrestricted.

Net assets of $98,370 and $441,912 were released from 
restrictions for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014
primarily for property and equipment purchases.

8.  Cash Flows Information:

Net cash flows from operating activities reflect cash 
payments for interest of $876,711 and $1,010,835 for the 
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Noncash investing and financing activities excluded from the 
statements of cash flows consists of property and equipment 
acquisitions through term financing arrangements of 
$887,112 in 2015 and $492,480 in 2014. Also, the 2015 
statement of cash flows excludes $294,555 included in
accounts payable that was used to purchase property and 
equipment.

9. Insurance:

Malpractice:

The Medical Center insures its medical malpractice risk 
under a claims-made policy issued by a mutual insurance 
carrier.  Management intends to continue the Medical 
Center’s medical malpractice insurance coverage on a 
claims-made basis, and has no reason to believe that the 
Medical Center may be prevented from renewing such 
coverage.  Coverage under this plan is limited to $500,000 
per occurrence and $2,500,000 in the aggregate.

There are various claims asserted against the Medical Center 
by former patients.  The claims are in various stages of 
processing, and some may ultimately be brought to trial.  
Other claims may be asserted arising from services provided 
to patients through December 31, 2015.  In the opinion of 
management, ultimate liability arising from asserted and 
unasserted claims, if any, in excess of insurance coverage will 
not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Excess coverage is also provided by the Medical Care 
Availability and Reduction of Error Fund (the “MCare 
Fund”) created by Pennsylvania Act No. 13 of 2002.  An 
actuarial study has determined that the MCare Fund is 
underfunded, and the state has indicated that the unfunded 
liability will be funded through future MCare Fund 
assessments as claims are eventually settled and paid.  No 
provision has been made in the financial statements for any 
future MCare assessments, as the Medical Center’s portion 
of the MCare Fund unfunded liability cannot be reasonably 
estimated.

Self Insurance:

The Medical Center sponsors a program of self-insurance 
for workers’ compensation claims up to a maximum of 
$50,000 per occurrence.  The Medical Center maintains a 
workers’ compensation cost collateral in accordance with 
the requirements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  
The accrual for workers’ compensation claims is based upon 
analysis of open claims and past claim experience.  Actual 
results could differ from these estimates.

The Medical Center is self-insured for employee health care 
benefits up to a stop-loss amount of $200,000 per employee.
The Medical Center accrues a liability for employee health 
care by charging the statement of operations for certain 
known claims and reasonable estimates for incurred but not 
reported claims based on claims experience and premiums 
paid.  The amount of actual losses incurred could differ 
materially from these estimates in the near term.
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10.  Commitments and Contingencies:

The Medical Center is involved in legal proceedings 
incidental to operations which, in the opinion of 
management, will not have a material adverse impact upon 
the financial position of the Medical Center.

The Medical Center leases certain property and equipment 
that does not meet the criteria for capitalization.  
Accordingly, related rentals are charged to operations as 
incurred. Total rental expense for the years ended December 
31, 2015 and 2014 for operating leases was approximately 
$1,994,000 and $2,598,000.  Future minimum operating lease 
commitments for years subsequent to December 31, 2015
are approximately:

2016 1,386,000$ 
2017 232,000      
2018 39,000        
2019 2,000          

1,659,000$ 

11. Transactions with UAHS and Olean General 
Hospital:

UAHS allocates expenditures for administrative services to 
affiliates. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Medical 
Center had amounts payable to Olean General Hospital for 
related activities totaling $146,501 and $1,995,449.  These 
amounts are included in accounts payable on the 
accompanying balance sheets.

During 2015, Olean General Hospital forgave its receivables 
owed from the Medical Center totaling $1,852,000. These 
amounts are presented as an unrestricted net assets 
contribution on the accompanying 2015 statements of 
operations and changes in net assets.

12.  Functional Expenses:

2015 2014
Health care services 51,046,412$  54,933,755$   
General and administrative 13,648,666    14,688,055    

64,695,078$  69,621,810$   

13.  Fair Value Measurements:

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and short-term borrowings are reasonable estimates 
of fair value because of their short maturity.  Investments in 
marketable securities are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis on the balance sheets.  The fair values of all 
amounts at December 31, 2015 and 2014 were determined as 
described in Note 1.

The estimated fair value of the Medical Center’s fixed rate 
long-term debt was $14,679,781 and $16,641,100 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, as compared to the carrying 
amounts of $16,489,614 and $17,058,755.  The fair value of 
the Medical Center’s long-term debt is based on estimated 
discounted cash flows using expected current market interest 
rates.





BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Additional Information

Consolidating Balance Sheet

Pavilion

Division of

December 31, 2015 (with comparative totals for 2014) Hospital Hospital Foundation

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 713,966$        100$             -$                  

Assets limited as to use - current 804,015          -                   -                   

Accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles 7,227,881       906,073         -                   

Other receivables 88,894,760     36,006,384    9,751,157      

Supplies 1,697,521       -                   -                   

Prepaid expenses 721,905          -                   -                   

100,060,048   36,912,557    9,751,157      

Property and equipment, net 26,018,856     852,018         82,655          

Assets limited as to use 8,127,066       -                   3,141,636      

Other assets, net 1,340,890       -                   -                   

135,546,860$  37,764,575$  12,975,448$  

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 1,999,669$     -$                  -$                  

Current portion of long-term debt 1,345,430       -                   200,000         

Accounts payable 6,184,617       -                   63,460          

Accrued expenses 93,883,779     41,810,808    760,275         

Estimated third-party payor settlements 418,322          -                   -                   

103,831,817   41,810,808    1,023,735      

Long-term debt 14,344,184     -                   600,000         

Accrued pension liability 14,938,128     -                   -                   

Net assets:

Unrestricted 2,290,461       (4,046,233)     11,203,106    

Temporarily restricted -                    -                   138,262         

Permanently restricted 142,270          -                   10,345          

2,432,731       (4,046,233)     11,351,713    

135,546,860$  37,764,575$  12,975,448$  



Reclassifications/ Consolidated Consolidated

BHE Eliminations 2015 2014

-$                  -$                           714,066$             1,420,783$         

-                   -                            804,015               973,554              

-                   -                            8,133,954            9,796,688           

99,900          (132,452,250)          2,299,951            1,828,232           

-                   -                            1,697,521             1,792,557           

-                   -                            721,905               954,087              

99,900          (132,452,250)          14,371,412           16,765,901         

-                   -                            26,953,529          27,836,774         

-                   -                            11,268,702           10,980,149         

-                   -                            1,340,890            1,464,752           

99,900$         (132,452,250)$        53,934,533$        57,047,576$       

-$                  -$                           1,999,669$           1,999,669$         

-                   -                            1,545,430            1,378,580           

-                   (63,317)                  6,184,760            8,908,976           

253,125         (132,388,933)          4,319,054            4,499,311           

-                   -                            418,322               624,024              

253,125         (132,452,250)          14,467,235           17,410,560         

-                   -                            14,944,184           15,680,175         

-                   -                            14,938,128           11,782,593         

(153,225)       -                            9,294,109            11,811,507         

-                   -                            138,262               210,126              

-                   -                            152,615                152,615              

(153,225)       -                            9,584,986            12,174,248         

99,900$         (132,452,250)$        53,934,533$        57,047,576$       
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BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Additional Information

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Pavilion

For the year ended December 31, 2015 Division of

(with comparative totals for 2014) Hospital Hospital Foundation

Unrestricted revenue:

Patient service revenue (net of 

contractual allowances and discounts) 55,624,267$ 6,408,249$   -$               

Less:  provision for bad debts (1,549,877)   -                  -                 

Net patient service revenue 54,074,390   6,408,249     -                 

Other revenue 4,294,933     1,292           2,294,674    

Total unrestricted revenue 58,369,323   6,409,541     2,294,674    

Expenses:

Salaries 23,805,278   2,483,107     165,568      

Employee benefits 5,663,723     511,891       38,660        

Purchased services 10,832,116   68,844         -                 

Professional fees 1,494,619     768,987       5,713          

Supplies 7,807,148     478,508       21,570        

Other 6,665,873     183,736       2,295,807    

Depreciation and amortization 2,924,941     143,221       5,073          

Interest 863,086       -                  -                 

Total expenses 60,056,784   4,638,294     2,532,391    

Income (loss) from operations (1,687,461)   1,771,247     (237,717)     

Other income:

Investment income (loss) 224,843       -                  (63,488)       

Contributions and other, net                  (71,891)        -                  -                 

Total other income, net 152,952       -                  (63,488)       

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (1,534,509)   1,771,247     (301,205)     

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (175,924)      -                  (49,648)       

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital 1,852,000     -                  -                 

Pension liability adjustment (4,177,729)   -                  -                 

Net assets released from restrictions -                  -                  98,370        

Change in unrestricted net assets (4,036,162)$  1,771,247$   (252,483)$   



Reclassifications/ Consolidated Consolidated

BHE Eliminations 2015 2014

-$                 -$                         62,032,516$       69,999,932$          

-                   -                           (1,549,877)          (2,520,434)            

-                   -                           60,482,639         67,479,498            

-                   (2,294,674)            4,296,225           4,220,347             

-                   (2,294,674)            64,778,864         71,699,845            

-                   (165,568)               26,288,385         28,996,608            

-                   (38,660)                 6,175,614           6,941,196             

-                   -                           10,900,960         10,634,958            

-                   (5,713)                  2,263,606           2,455,661             

-                   (21,570)                 8,285,656           9,235,768             

-                   (2,295,807)            6,849,609           7,356,380             

-                   (5,073)                  3,068,162           3,003,404             

-                   -                           863,086              997,835                

-                   (2,532,391)            64,695,078         69,621,810            

-                   237,717                83,786                2,078,035             

-                   -                           161,355              876,985                

-                   (237,717)               (309,608)            80,906                  

-                   (237,717)               (148,253)             957,891                

-                   -                           (64,467)              3,035,926             

-                   -                           (225,572)            (703,509)               

-                   -                           1,852,000           -                           

-                   -                           (4,177,729)          (4,811,899)            

-                   -                           98,370                441,912                

-$                 -$                         (2,517,398)$        (2,037,570)$          
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BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Additional Information

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Pavilion

For the year ended December 31, 2015 Division of

(with comparative totals for 2014) Hospital Hospital Foundation

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (1,534,509)$   1,771,247$      (301,205)$        

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (175,924)        -                      (49,648)            

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital 1,852,000      -                      -                      

Pension liability adjustment (4,177,729)     -                      -                      

Net assets released from restrictions -                    -                      98,370             

Change in unrestricted net assets (4,036,162)     1,771,247        (252,483)          

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions received -                    -                      26,506             

Net assets released from restrictions -                    -                      (98,370)            

Change in temporarily restricted net assets -                    -                      (71,864)            

Change in net assets (4,036,162)     1,771,247        (324,347)          

Net assets - beginning 6,468,893      (5,817,480)       11,676,060       

Net assets - ending 2,432,731$    (4,046,233)$     11,351,713$     



Reclassifications/ Consolidated Consolidated

BHE Eliminations 2015 2014

-$                        -$                        (64,467)$                  3,035,926$             

-                          -                          (225,572)                  (703,509)                 

-                          -                          1,852,000                 -                             

-                          -                          (4,177,729)               (4,811,899)              

-                          -                          98,370                     441,912                  

-                          -                          (2,517,398)               (2,037,570)              

-                          -                          26,506                     474,103                  

-                          -                          (98,370)                    (441,912)                 

-                          -                          (71,864)                    32,191                    

-                          -                          (2,589,262)               (2,005,379)              

(153,225)              -                          12,174,248               14,179,627             

(153,225)$            -$                        9,584,986$              12,174,248$           

17



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2016





BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2016 2015

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,103,806$         714,066$         

Assets limited as to use - current (Note 3) 290,316             804,015           

Accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of

  $969,000 and $3,036,000 6,585,933          8,133,954        

Other receivables 2,329,270          2,299,951        

Supplies 1,626,104           1,697,521        

Prepaid expenses 643,069             721,905           

12,578,498        14,371,412      

Property and equipment, net (Note 2) 25,482,769        26,953,529      

Assets limited as to use (Note 3) 12,002,165         11,268,702      

Other assets, net 978,764             934,575           

51,042,196$       53,528,218$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (Note 4) 1,999,669$        1,999,669$      

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 1,664,814           1,520,380        

Accounts payable 6,267,255          6,184,760        

Accrued expenses 4,241,321           4,319,054        

Estimated third-party payor settlements 369,127             418,322           

14,542,186         14,442,185      

Long-term debt (Note 5) 13,372,210         14,562,919      

Accrued pension liability (Note 6) 15,167,076         14,938,128      

Net assets:

Unrestricted 7,707,793          9,294,109        

Temporarily restricted (Note 7) 100,316              138,262           

Permanently restricted (Note 7) 152,615              152,615           

7,960,724          9,584,986        

51,042,196$       53,528,218$    

See accompanying notes. 2



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2016 2015

Unrestricted revenue:

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts) 63,158,031$     62,032,516$     

Less:  provision for bad debts (1,181,527)       (1,549,877)       

Net patient service revenue 61,976,504      60,482,639       

Other revenue 4,877,492        4,296,225         

Total unrestricted revenue 66,853,996      64,778,864       

Expenses:

Salaries 26,798,228      26,288,385       

Employee benefits 6,820,325        6,175,614         

Purchased services 10,620,401      10,900,960       

Professional fees 4,254,540        2,263,606         

Supplies 8,572,882        8,285,656         

Other 6,283,075        6,849,609         

Depreciation and amortization 3,112,241         3,043,112         

Interest 880,912           888,136           

Total expenses 67,342,604      64,695,078       

Income (loss) from operations (488,608)         83,786             

Other income (expense):

Investment income 40,529            161,355           

Contributions and other, net                  (401,679)         (309,608)          

Total other expense, net (361,150)          (148,253)          

Excess of expenses over revenue (849,758)         (64,467)            

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments 135,766           (225,572)          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (Note 11) -                      1,852,000         

Pension liability adjustment (Note 6) (932,685)         (4,177,729)       

Net assets released from restrictions (Note 7) 60,361             98,370             

Change in unrestricted net assets (1,586,316)$     (2,517,398)$      

See accompanying notes. 3



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended December 31, 2016 2015

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess of expenses over revenue (849,758)$       (64,467)$          

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments 135,766           (225,572)          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (Note 11) -                      1,852,000         

Pension liability adjustment (Note 6) (932,685)         (4,177,729)       

Net assets released from restrictions (Note 7) 60,361             98,370             

Change in unrestricted net assets (1,586,316)       (2,517,398)       

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions received 22,415             26,506             

Net assets released from restrictions (60,361)           (98,370)            

Change in temporarily restricted net assets (37,946)           (71,864)            

Change in net assets (1,624,262)       (2,589,262)       

Net assets - beginning 9,584,986        12,174,248       

Net assets - ending 7,960,724$      9,584,986$       

See accompanying notes. 4



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2016 2015

Operating activities:

Change in net assets (1,624,262)$   (2,589,262)$   

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows

  from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 3,112,241      3,043,112      

Provision for bad debts 1,181,527      1,549,877      

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (Note 11) -                   (1,852,000)     

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments (160,581)        94,462          

Pension liability adjustment 932,685        4,177,729      

Net change in other current assets and current liabilities:

Accounts receivable 366,494        112,857         

Other receivables (29,319)         (471,719)       

Supplies 71,417           95,036          

Prepaid expenses 78,836          232,182         

Accounts payable 377,050        (1,166,771)     

Accrued expenses (781,470)       (1,202,451)     

Estimated third-party payor settlements (49,195)         (205,702)       

Net operating activities 3,475,423      1,817,350      

Investing activities:

Property and equipment purchases (1,438,084)    (963,273)       

Assets limited as to use (59,183)         (213,476)       

Other assets (52,604)         83,885          

Net investing activities (1,549,871)     (1,092,864)     

Financing activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt (1,535,812)     (1,431,203)     

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 389,740        (706,717)       

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 714,066         1,420,783      

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 1,103,806$    714,066$       

See accompanying notes. 5
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BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies: 

Organization:

The accompanying financial statements include the 
accounts of Bradford Hospital (the Medical Center) and its 
controlled subsidiaries, Bradford Health Enterprises 
(BHE) and Bradford Hospital Foundation (BHF). All 
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have 
been eliminated in the accompanying financial statements.  

The Medical Center and its subsidiaries provide acute 
inpatient, outpatient, long-term nursing care, and home 
care services primarily to residents of Northwest 
Pennsylvania. 

Upper Allegheny Health System (UAHS), a not-for-profit 
management holding corporation, is the sole corporate 
member of the Medical Center.  UAHS is also the sole 
member of Olean General Hospital (OGH), a nearby not-
for-profit New York hospital and healthcare system.  

On October 31, 2016, UAHS consummated an alignment 
agreement with Kaleida Health, a larger not-for-profit 
organization which provides comprehensive healthcare 
services primarily in Western New York State, whereby 
Kaleida Health becomes the sole corporate member of 
UAHS. The agreement essentially allows for a 
collaboration that will expand access to care for patients 
and streamline operations. The agreement requires certain 
Federal and State regulatory approvals to be effectuated. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include investments in highly 
liquid brokerage money market accounts.  Cash and cash 
equivalents in financial institutions potentially subject the 
Medical Center to concentrations of credit risk since they 
may exceed insured limits at various times throughout the 
year.

Patient Accounts Receivable:

Patient accounts receivable are reduced by an allowance for 
doubtful accounts.  In evaluating the collectibility of patient 
accounts receivable, the Medical Center analyzes its past 
history and identifies trends for each of its major payor 
sources of revenue to estimate the appropriate allowance for 
doubtful accounts and provision for bad debts. Management
regularly reviews data about these major payor sources of 
revenue in evaluating the sufficiency of the allowance for 
doubtful accounts.
  
For receivables associated with services provided to patients 
who have third-party coverage, the Medical Center analyzes 
contractually due amounts and provides an allowance for 
doubtful accounts and a provision for bad debts, if 
necessary (for example, for expected uncollectible 
deductibles and copayments on accounts for which the 
third-party payor has not yet paid, or for payors who are 
known to have financial difficulties that make the realization 
of amounts due unlikely). For receivables associated with 
self-pay patients (which includes both patients without 
insurance and patients with deductible and copayment 
balances due for which third-party coverage exists for part 
of the bill), the Medical Center records a significant 
provision for bad debts in the period of service on the basis 
of its past experience, which indicates that many patients are 
unable or unwilling to pay the portion of their bill for which 
they are financially responsible.  The difference between the 
standard rates (or the discounted rates if negotiated) and the 
amounts actually collected after all reasonable collection 
efforts have been exhausted is charged off against the 
allowance for doubtful accounts.

Supplies:

Supplies include pharmaceuticals, medical and surgical 
supplies and food service stock, and are stated at the lower 
of first-in, first-out cost or net realizable value.

Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment is stated at cost or fair market value 
at the date of donation, net of accumulated depreciation. 
Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method over 
estimated service lives.
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Certain Medical Center property contains asbestos.  
Accordingly, the Medical Center is legally obligated to 
remediate the asbestos upon the related assets’ retirement or
disposal.  Because the Medical Center has no plans or 
expectations of plans to undertake a major renovation that 
would require removal of the asbestos or demolition of the 
property, the fair value of the liability can not be estimated 
with reasonable certainty.  Additionally, the Medical Center’s 
property is expected to be maintained by repairs and 
maintenance activities that would not involve the removal of 
the asbestos, and the need for major renovations caused by 
technology changes, operational changes, or other factors 
has not been identified.  When such an estimate of the 
liability’s fair value can be made, it will be established and the 
carrying value of the property will be increased by a 
corresponding amount.

Assets Limited As To Use:

Assets limited as to use include assets held by trustees for 
debt service and construction, pledges receivable, assets 
restricted by donors, and assets set aside by the Board of
Directors for future capital improvements over which the 
Board retains control and may at its discretion subsequently 
use for other purposes.  Amounts required to meet current 
liabilities of the Medical Center are included in current assets.

Investments within assets limited as to use represent 
marketable securities stated at fair value as determined by
quoted prices in active markets.  

Investments are classified as “available for sale.”  
Investment income or loss (including realized gains and 
losses on investments, interest and dividends) is included 
in excess of revenue over expenses unless the income or 
loss is restricted by donor or law.  Unrealized gains and 
losses on investments are excluded from the excess of 
revenue over expenses.

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has 
been limited by donors to a specific time period or purpose. 

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by 
donors to be maintained by the Medical Center in perpetuity, 
the earnings from which can be used for unrestricted 
purposes. 

Net Patient Service Revenue:

The majority of the Medical Center’s total patient service 
revenue is derived from patients admitted under Medicare, 
Medicaid and other third-party insurance programs.  The 
Medical Center has agreements with third-party payors that 
provide for payments to the Medical Center at amounts 
different from its established rates.

The Medical Center recognizes patient services revenue 
associated with services provided to patients who have third-
party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the 
services rendered.  For uninsured patients that do not qualify 
for charity care, the Medical Center recognizes revenue on 
the basis of its standard rates for services provided (or on 
the basis of discounted rates, if negotiated or provided by 
policy).  On the basis of historical experience, a significant 
portion of the Medical Center’s uninsured patients will be 
unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided.  Thus, 
the Medical Center records a significant provision for bad 
debts related to uninsured patients in the period the services 
are provided. 

Payment arrangements include prospectively determined 
rates per discharge and other service units, reimbursed costs, 
discounted charges, and per diem payments.  Net patient 
service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable 
amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for 
services rendered, including estimated retroactive 
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-
party payors. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an 
estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered 
and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined.

Revenue from the Medicare and Medicaid programs 
accounted for approximately 42% (40% for 2015) and 24% 
(21% for 2015), respectively, of the Medical Center’s net 
patient revenue for the year ended December 31, 2016.  
Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs are extremely complex and subject to 
interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable 
possibility that recorded estimates will change.

Charity Care:

The Medical Center provides care to patients who meet 
certain criteria under its charity care policy without charge or 
at amounts less than its established rates.  Because the 
Medical Center does not pursue collection of amounts 
determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as 
revenue.
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The estimated costs of services and supplies furnished under 
the Medical Center’s charity care policy, determined based 
on a ratio of cost to charges calculation, aggregated 
approximately $313,000 and $205,000 in 2016 and 2015.  

Donor-Restricted Gifts:

Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the 
Medical Center are reported at fair value at the date the 
promise is received.  The gifts are reported as either 
temporarily or permanently restricted support if they are 
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the 
donated assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, 
when a stipulated time restriction ends or a purpose 
restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted net assets 
are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the 
statement of operations as net assets released from 
restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met within the same year as received are 
reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying 
financial statements.

Unrestricted contributions recognized in 2016 and 2015
totaling $2,100,000 and $2,000,000 are in other revenue on 
the accompanying statements of operations.

Tax Status:

The Medical Center and BHF are 501(c)(3) organizations
exempt from income taxes under Section 501(a) of the 
Internal Revenue Code. BHE is subject to State and Federal 
income taxes, however activity to date has not been 
significant.

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial 
statements and accompanying notes.  Actual results could 
differ from those estimates.

Meaningful Use Incentive Payments:

To promote more effective (quality) and efficient healthcare 
delivery through the use of technology, the American 
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (ARRA) established 
incentive payments under the Medicare and Medicaid 
programs for certain professionals and hospitals that 
“meaningfully use” certified electronic health record (EHR) 
technology by 2014.  To qualify for incentives, hospitals and 
physicians needed to meet EHR “meaningful use” criteria 
during the period, as defined.  The incentive payments are 
made over a multi-year period on a transitional schedule.  

The Medical Center recognizes revenue when it determines it
has complied with the minimum number of “meaningful 
use” objectives and other specific requirements that are 
applicable during the specific EHR reporting period.  Based 
on the Medical Center’s evaluation process, $433,000 has 
been recognized as grant revenue in 2015, and presented as 
other revenue on the accompanying statement of operations. 
Estimated receivables at December 31, 2016 and 2015 total 
$224,000 and $605,000 and are included in other receivables 
on the accompanying balance sheets. 

The amount of grant revenue recognized is based on 
management’s best estimate, and the amounts are subject to 
change. Additionally, the awards are subject to audit by the 
federal government or its designee.

Subsequent Events:

The Medical Center has evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial 
statements through June 21, 2017, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

Excess of Revenue Over Expenses:

The statements of operations include excess of revenue 
over expenses.  Changes in unrestricted net assets which 
are excluded from excess of revenue over expenses, 
consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains 
and losses on investments other than trading securities,
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired 
using contributions which by donor restriction were for the
purpose of acquiring such assets), and certain adjustments 
to the Medical Center’s actuarially determined pension 
liability.

Reclassifications:

The 2015 financial statements have been reclassified to 
conform with the presentation adopted for 2016.
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2.  Property and Equipment:

2016 2015
Land and improvements 2,516,417$    2,516,417$     
Buildings and improvements 49,021,190    48,136,100     
Equipment and furnishings 24,786,223    23,673,028     
Construction in progress 65,797          431,016         

76,389,627    74,756,561     
Less accumulated depreciation 50,906,858    47,803,032     

25,482,769$  26,953,529$   

Depreciation expense totaled $3,103,826 in 2016 and
$3,028,185 in 2015.

Construction in progress includes expenditures related to 
facility renovations.

3.  Assets Limited As To Use:

2016 2015
Investments:

Internally designated 9,702,161$    8,750,628$     
Externally designated 157,932         186,130         
Held by trustee for 

for long-term debt 1,732,072      2,197,697      
11,592,165     11,134,455     

Less amount required to meet
current obligations -                   465,753         

11,592,165     10,668,702     

Pledges receivable 700,316         938,262         
Less estimated current portion 290,316         338,262         

410,000         600,000         
12,002,165$  11,268,702$   

Investment components:
Cash and cash equivalents 5,078,255$    5,561,520$     
U.S. Government securities 1,296,880      1,483,620      
Common stock 2,102,102      1,811,187      
Mutual funds 2,990,630      2,139,751      
Corporate obligations 124,298         138,377         

11,592,165$   11,134,455$   

The following summarizes investment return and its 
classification in the statements of operations and changes in 
net assets:

2016 2015
Investment income:

Dividends and interest 15,714$          30,245$          
Net realized gains 24,815            131,110          

40,529$         161,355$        

Change in unrealized gains and 
losses on investments 135,766$        (225,572)$       

The Medical Center evaluates its holdings of available for 
sale investments for other-than-temporary declines in fair 
value below the cost basis.  If an investment is determined to 
have an other-than-temporary decline in fair value, the 
unrealized losses for the investment are recognized in 
investment income. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, there 
were no significant instances of gross unrealized losses that 
required evaluation for other-than-temporary declines in fair 
value. 

4.  Short-Term Borrowings:

2016 2015
$2,000,000 bank demand working

capital line of credit, interest at
prime plus 1/8%, secured by
certain investments. 1,999,669$   1,999,669$    

At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Medical Center had 
$585,000 of irrevocable standby letters of credit related to 
professional liability insurance payments.  No amounts were 
outstanding on these letters of credit.

The borrowing agreements are subject to general review and 
renewal procedures.

5.  Long-Term Debt:

2016 2015
McKean County Hospital

Authority Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2005. 13,345,000$  14,490,000$  

Bank term loan, consistent with
$1,000,000 pledge receivable
estimated repayment timing, 
annual principal payments of 
$200,000 are due.  Interest is  
payable quarterly at 4%. 600,000        800,000         

Equipment finance loans, varying
monthly installments and interest
rates through December 2025,
secured by related equipment. 1,473,289     1,199,614      

15,418,289    16,489,614    
Less unamortized deferred

financing costs 381,265        406,315         
Less current portion 1,664,814      1,520,380      

13,372,210$  14,562,919$  

The McKean County Hospital Authority Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2005 (the “2005 Bonds”) in the original amount of 
$23,330,000 bear interest at 3.50% to 5.25%, are due in 
graduated installments through October 1, 2030, and are 
secured by a pledge of and security in the gross revenues of 
the Medical Center.  
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The 2005 Bonds are insured by ACA Financial Guaranty 
Corporation (ACA), and the bond agreements contain 
various financial ratios and covenants with which the 
Medical Center is required to comply.  These financial ratios 
include the maintenance of a debt service coverage ratio and 
days’ cash on hand.  At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the 
Medical Center did not comply with certain covenants.  On
June 21, 2017 and June 14, 2016, waivers were obtained for 
the appropriate periods, and the loans are presented at 
December 31, 2016 and 2015 according to original terms.  

Deferred financing costs associated with the issuance of 
long-term debt are amortized as interest expense on a 
straight-line basis over the terms of the related bonds.

Aggregate maturities on net long-term debt subsequent to 
December 31, 2016 are:

2017 1,664,814$    
2018 1,710,240      
2019 1,766,525      
2020 1,556,253      
2021 898,937        

Thereafter 7,440,255     
15,037,024$  

6.  Pension Plans:

The Medical Center has a noncontributory defined benefit 
pension plan covering substantially all employees active 
through March 31, 2011.  The Medical Center’s policy is to 
contribute on an annual basis an amount equal to the 
minimum funding standards of the Employee Retirement 
Income Security Act of 1974.  

The following table provides a reconciliation of the changes 
in the projected benefit obligation and fair value of assets 
for years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, and a 
statement of the funded status as of December 31, 2016 and 
2015.  The measurement dates are December 31, 2016 and 
2015:

2016 2015
Change in projected benefit obligation:
  Projected benefit obligation at
    beginning of year 31,972,779$  29,182,435$  
  Interest cost 1,337,361      1,147,511      
  Actuarial loss 652,798        2,618,871      
  Benefits paid (992,373)      (976,038)       
  Projected benefit obligation at
    end of year 32,970,565   31,972,779    

Change in plan assets:
  Fair value of plan assets at

    beginning of year 17,034,651    17,399,842    
  Actual return on plan assets 807,594        (574,477)       
  Employer contributions 953,617        1,185,324      
  Benefits paid (992,373)      (976,038)       
  Fair value of plan assets at

    end of year 17,803,489   17,034,651    

Funded status of the plan (15,167,076)$ (14,938,128)$ 

Accrued pension liability (15,167,076)$ (14,938,128)$ 

Accumulated benefit obligation 32,970,565$ 31,972,779$  

The projected benefit obligation is the actuarial present 
value as of the measurement date of all benefits attributed 
by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered
prior to that date.  The projected benefit obligation is 
measured using assumptions as to future compensation 
levels, which no longer applies to the Medical Center.

The accumulated benefit obligation is the actuarial present 
value of benefits (whether vested or nonvested) attributed 
by the pension benefit formula to employee service rendered
before a specified date and based on employee service and 
compensation prior to that date.  The accumulated benefit 
obligation is currently the same as the projected benefit 
obligation because an assumption about future 
compensation levels no longer applies to the Medical 
Center.

2016 2015
Components of net periodic

benefit cost:
Interest cost 1,337,361$   1,147,511$   
Expected return on plan assets (1,293,424)   (1,336,448)    
Recognized net actuarial loss 438,204       352,067        
  Net periodic pension cost 482,141$      163,130$      

Amounts recognized as accumulated adjustment to 
unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Net loss 18,590,682$  17,657,997$   
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The following amount included in accumulated adjustment 
to unrestricted net assets at December 31, 2016 is expected 
to be recognized in expense during 2017:

Amortization of net loss 470,668$   

Weighted average assumptions to determine benefit 
obligations at December 31, 2016 and 2015:

2016 2015
Discount rate 4.00% 4.25%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A

Weighted-average assumptions to determine periodic benefit 
cost:

2016 2015
Discount rate 4.25% 4.00%
Expected return on plan assets 7.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation increase N/A N/A

The most recent expected long-term rate of return on assets 
assumption is 7.50%.  This assumption represents the rate of 
return on plan assets reflecting the average rate of earnings 
expected on the funds invested or to be invested to provide 
for the benefits included in the benefit obligation. The 
assumption has been determined by reflecting expectations 
regarding future rates of return for the investment portfolio, 
with consideration given to the distribution of investments 
by asset class and historical rates of return for each individual 
asset class.

The Medical Center’s pension plan weighted-average assets 
allocation at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and the target 
allocation, by asset category, are as follows:

Target
Allocation 2016 2015

Asset category:
Cash equivalents       - 3% 8%
Equity securities 40% 42% 38%
Debt securities 25% 23% 22%
Flexible capital 20% 13% 12%
Inflation hedging 15% 19% 20%

100% 100% 100%

The plan’s overall portfolio mix of equity securities, fixed 
income (debt) securities, and other investments is based 
upon asset allocation modeling taking into consideration 
historical return patterns and risk factors.  The investment 
strategy for plan assets is to emphasize total return from 
capital appreciation, and dividend and interest income.  The 
plan trustees believe the current mix of plan assets provides 
an appropriate level of return to achieve current assumed 
return plan assumptions.  All of the plan’s investments are 
actively managed.

The plan invests in two limited partnerships (inflation 
hedging investments) and a common collective trust (flexible 
capital investments) for the purpose of investing in real 
estate and international markets. Investments in these items
are valued at fair value based on the plan’s proportionate 
share of net assets at the valuation date, or net asset value 
(NAV).  The plan’s ownership interests are valued in good 
faith by the plan administrator based on the fair values of the 
investment interests of the underlying assets and may 
consider other factors such as ownership percentage, 
ownership rights, and distribution provisions. Limited 
partnership investments may only be redeemed annually with 
notice of 65 - 90 days.

The plan’s other investments are valued based on quoted 
prices in active markets.

Investment assets at fair value are categorized based upon 
the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to 
measure their fair value.  The fair values of plan investment 
assets are as follows as of December 31, 2016 and 2015:

Quoted
Prices in

Active
2016 Markets NAV

Cash equivalents 549,748$        -$                
Equity securities 7,510,412       -                  
Debt securities 4,051,266       -                  
Flexible capital -                    2,246,287    
Inflation hedging -                    3,445,776    

12,111,426$    5,692,063$  

Based on

Quoted
Prices in
Active

2015 Markets NAV
Cash equivalents 1,303,615$    -$                
Equity securities 6,448,957     -                  
Debt securities 3,788,266     -                  
Flexible capital -                   1,968,975     
Inflation hedging -                   3,524,838     

11,540,838$  5,493,813$   

Based on

The Medical Center expects to contribute $1,351,000 to its 
pension plan during the annual period ending December 31, 
2017.
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The following benefit payments are expected to be paid:

2017 1,060,000$     
2018 1,161,000       
2019 1,272,000      
2020 1,366,000      
2021 1,470,000      

Thereafter through 2026 8,624,000      
14,953,000$   

The Medical Center froze the defined benefit pension plan 
effective April 1, 2011 by freezing all participant benefits as 
of that date.  An enhanced defined contribution Section 
403(b) savings incentive plan replaced the pension benefits.  
Total expense related to this plan amounted to $1,022,000
and $909,000 in 2016 and 2015.

7.  Restricted Net Assets:

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the
following purposes or periods at December 31, 2016 and 
2015:

2016 2015
Property and equipment 74,473$      90,336$       
Time restricted 9,891          41,165         
Other purposes 15,952        6,761           

100,316$     138,262$     

Net assets of $60,361 and $98,370 were released from
restrictions for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
primarily for property and equipment purchases.

8.  Cash Flows Information:

Net cash flows from operating activities reflect cash 
payments for interest of $870,174 and $876,711 for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Noncash investing and financing activities excluded from the 
statements of cash flows consists of property and equipment 
acquisitions through term financing arrangements of 
$489,537 in 2016 and $887,112 in 2015. Also, the 2015 
statement of cash flows excludes $294,555 included in
accounts payable that was used to purchase property and 
equipment.

9. Insurance:

Malpractice:

The Medical Center insures its medical malpractice risk 
under a claims-made policy issued by a mutual insurance 
carrier.  Management intends to continue the Medical 
Center’s medical malpractice insurance coverage on a 
claims-made basis, and has no reason to believe that the 
Medical Center may be prevented from renewing such 
coverage.  Coverage under this plan is limited to $500,000 
per occurrence and $2,500,000 in the aggregate.

There are various claims asserted against the Medical Center 
by former patients.  The claims are in various stages of 
processing, and some may ultimately be brought to trial.  
Other claims may be asserted arising from services provided 
to patients through December 31, 2016.  In the opinion of 
management, ultimate liability arising from asserted and 
unasserted claims, if any, in excess of insurance coverage will 
not have a material effect on the financial statements.

Excess coverage is also provided by the Medical Care 
Availability and Reduction of Error Fund (the “MCare 
Fund”) created by Pennsylvania Act No. 13 of 2002.  An 
actuarial study has determined that the MCare Fund is 
underfunded, and the state has indicated that the unfunded 
liability will be funded through future MCare Fund 
assessments as claims are eventually settled and paid.  No 
provision has been made in the financial statements for any 
future MCare assessments, as the Medical Center’s portion 
of the MCare Fund unfunded liability cannot be reasonably 
estimated.

Workers’ Compensation:

The Medical Center sponsors a program of self-insurance 
for workers’ compensation claims up to a maximum of 
$50,000 per occurrence.  The Medical Center maintains a 
workers’ compensation cost collateral in accordance with 
the requirements of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.  
The accrual for workers’ compensation claims is based upon 
analysis of open claims and past claim experience.  Actual 
results could differ from these estimates.
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Health:

The Medical Center is self-insured for employee health care 
benefits up to a stop-loss amount of $200,000 per employee.
The Medical Center accrues a liability for employee health 
care by charging the statement of operations for certain 
known claims and reasonable estimates for incurred but not 
reported claims based on claims experience and premiums 
paid.  The amount of actual losses incurred could differ 
materially from these estimates in the near term.

10.  Commitments and Contingencies:

The Medical Center is involved in legal proceedings 
incidental to operations which, in the opinion of 
management, will not have a material adverse impact upon 
the financial position of the Medical Center.

The Medical Center leases certain property and equipment 
that does not meet the criteria for capitalization.  
Accordingly, related rentals are charged to operations as 
incurred. Total rental expense for the years ended December 
31, 2016 and 2015 for operating leases was approximately 
$1,864,000 and $1,994,000.  Future minimum operating lease 
commitments for years subsequent to December 31, 2016
are approximately:

2017 1,128,000$  
2018 695,000      
2019 476,000      
2020 355,000      
2021 160,000      

2,814,000$ 

11. Transactions with UAHS and OGH:

UAHS allocates expenditures for administrative services to 
affiliates. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Medical 
Center had amounts payable to OGH for related activities 
totaling $279,788 and $146,501.  These amounts are included 
in accounts payable on the accompanying balance sheets.

During 2015, OGH forgave its receivables owed from the 
Medical Center totaling $1,852,000. These amounts are 
presented as an unrestricted net assets contribution on the 
accompanying 2015 statements of operations and changes in 
net assets.

12.  Functional Expenses:

2016 2015
Health care services 53,855,418$  51,738,131$   
General and administrative 13,487,186    12,956,947    

67,342,604$  64,695,078$   

13.  Fair Value Measurements:

The carrying amounts of cash, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and short-term borrowings are reasonable estimates 
of fair value because of their short maturity.  Investments in 
marketable securities are measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis on the balance sheets.  The fair values of all 
amounts at December 31, 2016 and 2015 were determined as 
described in Note 1.

The estimated fair value of the Medical Center’s fixed rate 
long-term debt was $13,802,870 and $14,679,781 at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, as compared to the carrying 
amounts of $15,399,752 and $16,489,614.  The fair value of 
the Medical Center’s long-term debt is based on estimated 
discounted cash flows using expected current market interest 
rates.





BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Additional Information

Consolidating Balance Sheet

Pavilion

Division of

December 31, 2016 (with comparative totals for 2015) Hospital Hospital Foundation

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 1,103,706$       100$             -$                  

Assets limited as to use - current 290,316           -                   -                   

Accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles 5,461,532         1,124,401      -                   

Other receivables 3,147,143         427,161         -                   

Supplies 1,626,104         -                   -                   

Prepaid expenses 643,069           -                   -                   

12,271,870       1,551,662      -                   

Property and equipment, net 24,355,125       1,049,702      77,942          

Assets limited as to use 8,269,491         -                   3,732,674      

-                   

Other assets, net 953,248           25,516          -                   

45,849,734$     2,626,880$    3,810,616$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings 1,999,669$       -$                  -$                  

Current portion of long-term debt 1,464,814         -                   200,000         

Accounts payable 6,267,255         -                   1,245,034      

Accrued expenses 4,178,901         62,420          -                   

Estimated third-party payor settlements 369,127           -                   -                   

14,279,766       62,420          1,445,034      

Long-term debt 12,972,210       -                   400,000         

Accrued pension liability 15,167,076       -                   -                   

Net assets:

Unrestricted 3,288,412         2,564,460      1,854,921      

Temporarily restricted -                      -                   100,316         

Permanently restricted 142,270           -                   10,345          

3,430,682         2,564,460      1,965,582      

45,849,734$     2,626,880$    3,810,616$    



Reclassifications/ Consolidated Consolidated

BHE Eliminations 2016 2015

-$                  -$                           1,103,806$           714,066$            

-                   -                            290,316               804,015              

-                   -                            6,585,933            8,133,954           

-                   (1,245,034)              2,329,270            2,299,951           

-                   -                            1,626,104             1,697,521           

-                   -                            643,069               721,905              

-                   (1,245,034)              12,578,498           14,371,412         

-                   -                            25,482,769          26,953,529         

-                   -                            12,002,165           11,268,702         

-                   -                            978,764               934,575              

-$                  (1,245,034)$            51,042,196$         53,528,218$       

-$                  -$                           1,999,669$           1,999,669$         

-                   -                            1,664,814             1,520,380           

-                   (1,245,034)              6,267,255            6,184,760           

-                   -                            4,241,321             4,319,054           

-                   -                            369,127               418,322              

-                   (1,245,034)              14,542,186           14,442,185         

-                   -                            13,372,210           14,562,919         

-                   -                            15,167,076           14,938,128         

-                   -                            7,707,793            9,294,109           

-                   -                            100,316                138,262              

-                   -                            152,615                152,615              

-                   -                            7,960,724            9,584,986           

-$                  (1,245,034)$            51,042,196$         53,528,218$       

15
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Additional Information

Consolidating Statement of Operations

Pavilion

For the year ended December 31, 2016 Division of

(with comparative totals for 2015) Hospital Hospital Foundation

Unrestricted revenue:

Patient service revenue (net of 

contractual allowances and discounts) 55,974,099$ 7,183,932$   -$               

Less:  provision for bad debts (1,181,527)   -                  -                 

Net patient service revenue 54,792,572   7,183,932     -                 

Other revenue 4,876,688     804              218,322      

Total unrestricted revenue 59,669,260   7,184,736     218,322      

Expenses:

Salaries 23,767,334   3,030,894     148,883      

Employee benefits 6,097,744     722,581       37,221        

Purchased services 10,572,741   47,660         -                 

Professional fees 3,646,006     608,534       3,641          

Supplies 8,155,043     417,839       54,344        

Other 5,111,656     1,171,419     434,860      

Depreciation and amortization 2,971,642     140,599       4,947          

Interest 880,912       -                  -                 

Total expenses 61,203,078   6,139,526     683,896      

Income (loss) from operations (1,533,818)   1,045,210     (465,574)     

Other income:

Investment income (loss) (8,318)          -                  48,847        

Contributions and other, net                  63,895         -                  -                 

Total other income, net 55,577         -                  48,847        

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (1,478,241)   1,045,210     (416,727)     

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments 128,023       -                  7,743          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital -                  -                  -                 

Pension liability adjustment (932,685)      -                  -                 

Net assets released from restrictions -                  -                  60,361        

Change in unrestricted net assets (2,282,903)$  1,045,210$   (348,623)$   



Reclassifications/ Consolidated Consolidated

BHE Eliminations 2016 2015

-$                 -$                         63,158,031$        62,032,516$          

-                   -                           (1,181,527)          (1,549,877)            

-                   -                           61,976,504         60,482,639            

-                   (218,322)               4,877,492           4,296,225             

-                   (218,322)               66,853,996         64,778,864            

-                   (148,883)               26,798,228         26,288,385            

-                   (37,221)                 6,820,325           6,175,614             

-                   -                           10,620,401          10,900,960            

-                   (3,641)                  4,254,540           2,263,606             

-                   (54,344)                 8,572,882           8,285,656             

-                   (434,860)               6,283,075           6,849,609             

-                   (4,947)                  3,112,241            3,043,112             

-                   -                           880,912              888,136                

-                   (683,896)               67,342,604         64,695,078            

-                   465,574                (488,608)            83,786                  

-                   -                           40,529                161,355                

-                   (465,574)               (401,679)             (309,608)               

-                   (465,574)               (361,150)             (148,253)               

-                   -                           (849,758)            (64,467)                 

-                   -                           135,766              (225,572)               

-                   -                           -                         1,852,000             

-                   -                           (932,685)            (4,177,729)            

-                   -                           60,361                98,370                  

-$                 -$                         (1,586,316)$        (2,517,398)$          

16                               



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Additional Information

Consolidating Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Pavilion

For the year ended December 31, 2016 Division of

(with comparative totals for 2015) Hospital Hospital Foundation

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (1,478,241)$   1,045,210$      (416,727)$        

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments 128,023         -                      7,743               

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital -                    -                      -                      

Pension liability adjustment (932,685)        -                      -                      

Net assets released from restrictions -                    -                      60,361             

Settlement of intercompany balances 3,280,854      5,565,483        (8,999,562)       

Change in unrestricted net assets 997,951         6,610,693        (9,348,185)       

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions received -                    -                      22,415             

Net assets released from restrictions -                    -                      (60,361)            

Change in temporarily restricted net assets -                    -                      (37,946)            

Change in net assets 997,951         6,610,693        (9,386,131)       

Net assets - beginning 2,432,731      (4,046,233)       11,351,713       

Net assets - ending 3,430,682$    2,564,460$      1,965,582$       



Reclassifications/ Consolidated Consolidated

BHE Eliminations 2016 2015

-$                        -$                        (849,758)$                (64,467)$                 

-                          -                          135,766                   (225,572)                 

-                          -                          -                              1,852,000               

-                          -                          (932,685)                  (4,177,729)              

-                          -                          60,361                     98,370                    

153,225               -                          -                              -                             

153,225               -                          (1,586,316)               (2,517,398)              

-                          -                          22,415                     26,506                    

-                          -                          (60,361)                    (98,370)                   

-                          -                          (37,946)                    (71,864)                   

153,225               -                          (1,624,262)               (2,589,262)              

(153,225)              -                          9,584,986                12,174,248             

-$                        -$                        7,960,724$              9,584,986$             
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Empire State Plaza, Corning Tower, Albany, NY 12237│health.ny.gov 

 

       

 

      December 11, 2017    

 

Timothy Finan  

President/Chief Executive Officer 

Olean General Hospital 

515 Main Street 

Olean, New York 14760 

 

Re:   172084 C 

Olean General Hospital 

(Cattaraugus County) 

Merge Bradford Regional Medical Center 

located in Bradford, PA into Olean General 

Hospital 

 

Dear Mr. Finan: 
 

The Department of Health proposes to approve the above application in accordance with 

the full review provisions set forth in 10 NYCRR section 710.1(c)(2).  Approval of this 

application is subject to the enclosed contingencies first being satisfied.     

 

In addition to contingencies, the Department proposes to approve this application with 

the enclosed conditions.  You are expected to comply with these conditions throughout the 

operation of this project, including any and all conditions pertaining to specified timeframes. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of 10 NYCRR Parts 86 and 710, you may not begin the 

construction or operation of any aspect of this project, or receive reimbursement for any 

associated costs, unless all required written approvals are obtained.  Before beginning any aspect 

of this project, you must complete the following steps: 

 

• submit written materials to satisfy the enclosed contingencies and receive written approval 

from the Center for Health Care Facility Planning, Licensure, and Finance indicating 

satisfaction of all contingencies; 

 

• If the subject facility is currently in operation, you must develop a plan to ensure the health 

and safety of all patients and staff during construction.  This plan must comply with all 

applicable sections of the National Fire Prevention Association (NFPA) 101 Life Safety 

Code (2000 Edition) and all applicable sections of the State Hospital Code during 

construction.  The plan may require you to separate residents, patients, staff and essential 

support services from the construction site and/or provide them with an alternative means of 

egress.  Please have the plan available to regional office staff at the time of their on-site visit.  



 

Olean General Hospital Project 172084 

You are responsible for ensuring that this project complies with all applicable statutes, 

codes, rules and regulations.  Should violations be found when reviewing documents, or at the 

time of on-site inspections or surveys, you will be required to correct them.  Additional costs 

incurred to address any violations will not be eligible for reimbursement without prior approval 

by the Department.  Also, in accordance with 10 NYCRR section 710.5, any change in the scope 

of this project must receive prior approval from the Department and may require a new or 

amended application. 

 

If you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact the Bureau of Project 

Management at (518) 402-0911. 
 

     Sincerely, 

 

      
Tracy F. Raleigh  

Director 

     Center for Health Care Facility Planning, 

Licensure and Finance 
 

      

Enclosures 



 

Olean General Hospital Project 172084 

172084 C Olean General Hospital 

 

Approval contingent upon: 

1. Submission of a photocopy of the Written Consent of the Board of Directors of Olean 
General Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 

2. Submission of a photocopy of the Written Consent of the Board of Directors of Bradford 
Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 

3. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Olean 
General Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 

4. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Plan of Merger of Bradford Hospital into Olean 
General Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 

5. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Merger Agreement, acceptable to the 
Department.  [CSL] 

6. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Certificate of Merger of Bradford Hospital into 
Olean General Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 

7. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Resolution of the Board of the Directors of the 
Upper Allegheny Health System, Inc., acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 

 

Approval conditional upon: 

1. The project must be completed within one year from the date of the Public Health and Health 
Planning Council recommendation letter.  Failure to complete the project within the 

prescribed time shall constitute an abandonment of the application by the applicant and an 

expiration of the approval.  [PMU] 
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Public Health and Health 
Planning Council 

Project # 172084-C 
Olean General Hospital 

 
Program: Hospital  County: Cattaraugus 
Purpose: Construction Acknowledged: August 18, 2017 
    

Executive Summary 
  

Description 
Olean General Hospital, Inc. (Olean, OGH), a 
186-bed, voluntary not-for-profit, Article 28 acute 
care hospital located at 515 Main Street, Olean 
(Cattaraugus County), requests approval for the 
full asset merger of Bradford Regional Medical 
Center (Bradford, BRMC), a 107-bed, voluntary 
not-for-profit, acute care hospital located in 
Bradford, Pennsylvania, into OGH.  Upon 
approval by the Public Health and Health 
Planning Council (PHHPC), OGH will become 
the successor corporate entity with an Olean 
division and a Bradford division.  There are no 
bed or programmatic changes as a result of this 
application, and both hospitals will retain their 
respective State licenses.   
 
Geographically, BRMC is located approximately 
three miles south of the New York State border 
and approximately 24 miles south of OGH.  On 
March 31, 2009, the two hospitals entered into a 
Master Affiliation Agreement (MAA) with Upper 
Allegheny Health Systems (UAHS), whereby 
UAHS became the sole corporate member of 
OGH (active parent/co-operator establishment 
under CON 091090) and the sole corporate 
member of BRMC.  The MAA empowered 
UAHS, acting through its Board of Directors, to 
approve a merger of OGH and BRMC.  Upon 
PHHPC approval of this application, the MAA 
will no longer be necessary to the corporate 
structures and powers among UAHS, Olean and 
Bradford, and will be consensually terminated 
when the merger becomes effective.  It is noted 
that the Board of Directors at OGH, BRMC and 
UAHS are all mirror Boards, which will continue 
after the proposed merger is finalized.  There 
will be no change to the Board structure post  
 

 
approval as the board members will remain the 
same.  
  
On October 31, 2016, UAHS consummated an 
alignment agreement with Kaleida Health, a not-
for-profit healthcare system in Western New 
York that provides comprehensive hospital, 
long-term care and home care services, 
whereby Kaleida Health became the sole 
corporate member of UAHS (grandparent to 
OGH).   Kaleida Health will remain the sole 
corporate member of UAHS after approval, and 
UAHS will remain the active parent of OGH.  
BFA Attachments C and D are the organization 
chart of OGH and BRMC pre-merger and post-
merger. 
  
The anticipated benefits of the merger include: 
Medicare revenue enhancements with 
attainment of Sole Community Hospital status; 
efficiencies related to drug cost reductions under 
an expanded 340B program; reduction in debt 
principal and lower interest rate thereby lowering 
interest costs; and other operational expense 
savings due to economies of scale (combined 
entity audit fee and purchasing cost reductions).  
In addition to such direct financial benefits, 
liquidity is expected to improve with debt service 
reductions resulting in cash savings, and “extra 
collateral” of $4M currently required by the 
BRMC Bond Insurer, which will be released for 
liquidity needs and capital funding. 
 
OPCHSM Recommendation 
Contingent Approval 
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Need Summary 
There will not be any change in beds or services 
and there is no anticipated change in utilization 
at either facility. 
 
Program Summary 
Based on the results of this review, a favorable 
recommendation can be made regarding the  
facility’s current compliance pursuant to 2802-
(3)(e) of the New York State Public Health Law. 
 
 
 

Financial Summary 
There are no project costs associated with this 
application.  Below is the combined budget: 
 
 Current Year Year One 
Revenues $181,052,776 $183,023,092 
Expenses 184,743,323 182,614,770 
Net Income ($3,690,547) $408,332 
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Recommendations 
  

 
Health Systems Agency 
There will be no HSA recommendation for this project. 
 
Office of Primary Care and Health Systems Management 
Approval contingent upon: 
1. Submission of a photocopy of the Written Consent of the Board of Directors of Olean General 

Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
2. Submission of a photocopy of the Written Consent of the Board of Directors of Bradford Hospital, 

acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
3. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Olean General 

Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
4. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Plan of Merger of Bradford Hospital into Olean General 

Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
5. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Merger Agreement, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
6. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Certificate of Merger of Bradford Hospital into Olean 

General Hospital, acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
7. Submission of a photocopy of the executed Resolution of the Board of the Directors of the Upper 

Allegheny Health System, Inc., acceptable to the Department.  [CSL] 
 
Approval conditional upon: 
1. The project must be completed within one year from the date of the Public Health and Health 

Planning Council recommendation letter.  Failure to complete the project within the prescribed time 
shall constitute an abandonment of the application by the applicant and an expiration of the approval.  
[PMU] 

 
 
Council Action Date 
December 7, 2017 
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Need Analysis 
 
Analysis  
SPARCS utilization data is not available for Bradford Regional Medical Center because it is located out of 
state in Bradford Pennsylvania. Below data is for Olean General only.  
 

    Occupancy   
 Current Beds 2012 2013  2014 2015 2016  
Med/Surg 152 34.6% 34.8% 32.3% 33.0% 28.9% 
Pediatric 6 7.9% 7.1% 5.6% 6.5% 5.5% 
Maternity 14 36.7% 36.9% 34.6% 33.8% 33.7% 
Psychiatric 14 1.6% 72.2% 71.3% 65.8% 57.7% 
Subtotal 186 31.6% 37.2% 35.1% 35.2% 31.5% 

 
Olean General Hospital Services 
Ambulatory Surgery - Multi Specialty Medical Services - Other Medical Specialties 
Cardiac Catheterization - Adult Diagnostic Medical Services - Primary Care 
Cardiac Catheterization - Electrophysiology (EP) Medical Social Services 
Cardiac Catheterization (PCI) Medical/Surgical 
Clinical Laboratory Service Nuclear Medicine - Diagnostic 
Coronary Care Pediatric 
Dental O/P Psychiatric 
Emergency Department Radiology - Diagnostic 
Intensive Care Renal Dialysis - Acute 
Level I Perinatal Care Renal Dialysis - Chronic - 12 stations 
Lithotripsy SAFE Center 
Maternity Swing Bed Program 

Source:   HFIS 2017 
 
Conclusion 
There will not be any impact on beds or services at either hospital. There are no anticipated changes in 
utilization due to the approval of this project.  
 
Recommendation 
From a need perspective, approval is recommended.  
 
 

Program Analysis 
 
Program Description 
Upper Allegheny Health System (UAHS) is the sole member of the OGH and BRMC.  UAHS’s service 
area includes southwestern New York state and northwestern Pennsylvania.  
 
There are no anticipated changes to beds or services at either hospital.  The purpose of this transaction is 
to strengthen federal reimbursement improvements due to Sole Community Hospital status as well as 
enhancements to participation in the federal government’s 340B Drug Discount Program.  
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Compliance with Applicable Codes, Rules and Regulations 
This facility has no outstanding Article 28 surveillance or enforcement actions and, based on the most 
recent surveillance information, is deemed to be currently operating in substantial compliance with all 
applicable State and Federal codes, rules and regulations. This determination was made based on a 
review of the files of the Department of Health, including all pertinent records and reports regarding the 
facility’s enforcement history and the results of routine Article 28 surveys as well as investigations of 
reported incidents and complaints. 
 
Conclusion 
Based on the results of this review, a favorable recommendation can be made regarding the facility’s 
current compliance pursuant to 2802-(3)(e) of the New York State Public Health Law.   
 
Recommendation 
From a programmatic perspective, approval is recommended. 
 
 

Financial Analysis 
 
Plan of Merger  
In accordance with the Plan of Merger, BRMC will merged into OGH forming a single corporate entity.  
There are no bed or programmatic changes to either hospital.  Upon the effective date of merger, Olean’s 
Certificate of Incorporation and By-laws will be amended and the MAA by and among UAHS, Olean and 
Bradford dated March 31, 2009, will terminate.  UAHS will remain the sole member and active parent/co-
operator of OGH.  OGH will be the surviving corporate entity and the separate existence of BRMC will 
cease with the corporation’s merger into Olean.   The effective date of this Plan of Merger will be the date 
the Certificate is filed with the New York Secretary of State. 
 
Operating Budget 
The applicant has submitted their current year (2016) and their first-year operating, in 2017 dollars, as 
shown below: 
 

BRMC 
$66,853,996 
 67,342,604 
($   488,608) 

 
Year One 

$183,023,902 
 182,614,770 
$      409,132 

 
Capability and Feasibility 
There are no project costs associated with this application and no additional working capital 
requirements.  The full asset merger of BRMC into OGH represents a corporate reorganization expected 
to provide revenue enhancement, cost efficiencies and opportunities for savings related to increased 
purchasing power, shared resources, and decreased salary and benefit costs. 
 
BFA Attachment A is the 2015-2016 certified financial statements of Olean General Hospital.  As shown, 
Olean had a positive working capital position and positive net asset position during 2015 and 2016, 
respectively.  Also, Olean achieved an operating income of $1,675,743 in 2015 and incurred an operating 
loss of $3,201,939 in 2016.  The loss was due to emergency room volume declining and a $1,150,000 
increase in salary and benefits.  Also, some orthopedic related costs have increased.  This proposed 
application will offset the losses by creating efficiencies in negotiating power with vendors and economies 
of scale with compensation and benefits through sharing staff and combining services.  

2016 – Current Year Olean 
Operating Revenue $114,198,780 
Operating Expenses 117,400,719 
Loss from operations ($3,201,939) 
 
Combined Current year 
Operating Revenue $181,052,776 
Operating Expenses 184,743,323 
Loss from operations ($3,690,547) 
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BFA Attachment B is the 2015-2016 certified financial statements of Bradford Regional Medical Center.  
As shown, Bradford had a positive working capital position and positive net asset position during 2015 
and 2016, respectively.  Also, the entity achieved an operating income of $83,786 in 2015 and incurred 
an operating loss of $488,608 in 2016. The reason for the loss was higher insurance costs than 
anticipated and the start-up costs for hiring hospitalists 24 hours a day, 365 days a year which totaled 
$524,000.   To offset the loss, this proposed asset merger allows both hospitals to share in the cost and  
 
The applicant has demonstrated the capability to proceed in a financially feasible manner. 
 
Recommendation 
From a financial perspective, approval is recommended. 
 
 

Attachments 
 
  BFA Attachment A   2015-2016 Certified Financial Statements for OGH 
  BFA Attachment B   2015-2016 Certified Financial Statements for BRMC 
  BFA Attachment C   Organization Chart OGH and BRMC pre-merger 
  BFA Attachment D   Organization Chart OGH post-merger
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Project Description: Merge Bradford Regional Medical Center located in Bradford, PA into Olean General
Hospital


Executive Summary

Merger of Bradford Regional Medical Center located in Bradford, PA into Olean General Hospital located in
Olean, NY
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      November 7, 2017 

 

Timothy Finan  

President/Chief Executive Officer 

Olean General Hospital 

515 Main Street 

Olean, New York 14760 

 

 

Re:   172084 C 

Olean General Hospital 

(Cattaraugus County) 

Merge Bradford Regional Medical Center located 

in Bradford, PA into Olean General Hospital 

 

Dear Mr. Finan: 

 

Please be advised that the above captioned application has been scheduled for review by the 

Establishment/Project Review Committee of the Public Health and Health Planning Council on Thursday, 

November 16, 2017, at 10:15 a.m. at the Empire State Plaza, Concourse Level, Meeting Rooms 6, 

Albany.  A copy of the exhibit, to be reviewed at the meeting, and the meeting schedule, can be found at 

www.health.state.ny.us/facilities/public_health_and_health_planning_council/.   

 

Subsequently, the application will be considered by the Public Health and Health Planning 
Council on Thursday, December 7, 2017, scheduled to begin immediately following the Codes, 

Regulations and Legislation Committee scheduled to begin at 9:30 a.m. located at 90 Church Street, 4th 

Floor, Room 4 A & B, New York, New York 10007 

 

The above stated meetings can be accessed via webcast through the following internet address: 

www.health.state.ny.us/events/webcasts 

 

 

 Sincerely,  

 

 
 Colleen M. Leonard 

 Executive Secretary 

 Public Health and Health Planning Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Empire State Plaza, Corning Tower, Albany, NY 12237│health.ny.gov 
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New York State Department of Health                                 Schedule 1  
Certificate of Need Application  

DOH 155-A  Schedule 1 2 
(12/2014) 
 

         
PRINT OR TYPE NAME  TITLE  

Timothy Finan  President & CEO  
 
Contacts: 
 
Applicant should identify the operator's chief executive officer, or equivalent official, to whom all official 
correspondence from DOH about this application should be addressed 
 

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

  NAME AND TITLE OF CH EF EXECUTIVE 

 Timothy Finan, President & CEO  
STREET & NUMBER 

 515 Main Street 
CITY STATE     ZIP 

 Olean NY  14760   
TELEPHONE   FAX NUMBER    E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 716-375-6190 716-375-6990  tfinan@uahs.org  
 
Applicant may designate a second person to whom copies of all official correspondence from DOH about this 
application should be addressed.  (This could be the applicant’s attorney, or a consultant) 
 

C
O

N
T

A
C

T
 

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
 

CONTACT PERSON'S COMPANY NAME AND TITLE OF CONTACT PERSON 

 Richard Braun  Senior Vice President Finance/Chief Financial Officer 
STREET & NUMBER 

 515 Main Street 
CITY STATE     ZIP 

 Olean NY  14760   
TELEPHONE   FAX NUMBER    E-MAIL ADDRESS 

 716-375-6190 716-375-6990  rbraun@uahs.org  
 
The applicant's lead attorney should be identified: 
 

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

 

NAME 

 Peter Millock, Nixon Peabody  
STREET & NUMBER 

 677 Broadway, 10th Floor 
CITY STATE   ZIP 

 Albany  NY  12207 
TELEPHONE   FAX NUMBER    E-MA L ADDRESS 

 518-427-2650        pmillock@nixonpeabody.com  
 
If a consultant prepared the application, the consultant should be identified:  
 

C
O

N
S

U
L

T
A

N
T

 NAME 

 Jack Sieber, Freed Maxick  
STREET & NUMBER 

 424 Main Street, Suite 800 
CITY STATE   ZIP 

 Buffalo NY  14202  
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DOH 155-A  Schedule 1 3 
(12/2014) 
 

TELEPHONE   FAX NUMBER    E-MA L ADDRESS 

 716-332-2738        Jack.Sieber@Freedmaxick.com  
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Certificate of Need Application  
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(12/2014) 
 

 
The applicant's lead accountant should be identified:  
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

N
T

 

NAME 

 Mike Grimaldi, Lumsden and McCormick  
STREET & NUMBER 

 Cyclorama Building, 369 Franklin Street 
CITY STATE   ZIP 

 Buffalo NY  14202  
TELEPHONE   FAX NUMBER    E-MA L ADDRESS 

 716-856-3300        mgrimaldi@lumsdencpa.com  

 
Please list all Architects and Engineer contacts. 

 

 
 

 
 

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
an

d
/o

r 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 NAME                                                                                                         FIRM                                                                                                                STREET & NUMBER 

                    

CITY, STATE, ZIP                                                                                               TELEPHONE                                    E-MAIL ADDRESS 

                   

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
an

d
/o

r 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 NAME                                                                                                      FIRM                                                                                                           STREET & NUMBER 

                    

CITY, STATE, ZIP                                                                                               TELEPHONE                                      E-MA L ADDRESS   

                   

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
an

d
/o

r 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 NAME                                                                                                  FIRM                                                                                                                 STREET & NUMBER 

                    

CITY, STATE, ZIP                                                                                                TELEPHONE                                       E-MAIL ADDRESS  

                   

A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

 
an

d
/o

r 
E

N
G

IN
E

E
R

 NAME                                                                                                  FIRM                                                                                                                   STREET & NUMBER 

                    

CITY, STATE, ZIP                                                                                                TELEPHONE                                     E-MA L ADDRESS  
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Checklist of Schedules Included in This Application 

Schedule 
Number 

      Schedule Name Required Included  

1  Required for all CON Applications   
2 (A-D) Personal Qualifying and Disclosure Information-All Establishment Applications   
3 (A-B) CON Forms Related to Legal Issues    
4 (A-B) Legal Information for Ownership Transfers    
5  CON Form Regarding Working Capital Plan    
6 CON Form Regarding Architectural Submission    
7 CON Forms Regarding Environmental Issues    
8 (A-B) Project & Subproject Cost Summary    
9  CON Forms Regarding Project Financing   
10 Space & Construction Cost Distribution    
11 Moveable Equipment   
12 (A-G) CON Forms Specific to Adult Care Facilities    
13 (A-D) CON Forms Applicable to all Article 28 Facilities                                                           
14 (A-D) Additional Legal Information-Article 28   
15 Additional Legal Information-Article 28-Ownership Transfers   
16 (A-F) CON Forms Specific to Hospitals-Article 28   
17 (A-E) CON Forms Specific to Diagnostic & Treatment Centers-Article 28   
18 (A-E) CON Forms Specific to Residential Health Care Facilities-Article 28    
19 (A-B) CON Forms Specific to Adult Day Health Care Programs     
20 (A-C) CON Forms Specific to Programs of OMH, OASAS, and OMRDD (If Applicable)   
21 (A-G) CON Forms Specific to CHHA and LTHHCP Programs-Article 36    
22 (A-F) CON Forms Specific to Hospices-Article 40   
23 CON Forms Specific to All Projects Incorporating Health IT   



New York State Department of Health                                 Schedule 1 
Certificate of Need Application  
 

DOH 155-A  Schedule 1 6 
(12/2014) 
 

 
Other Facilities Owned or Controlled by the Applicant      
 (Establishment Applications only)      
      
Does the applicant or any related entity (parent, member or Subsidiary Corporation) operate or 
control any of the following   in New York State?       
 

FACILITY TYPE - NEW YORK STATE  
FACILITY 

TYPE CODE
  

Hospital HOSP Yes  No  

Nursing Home NH  Yes   No   

Diagnostic and Treatment Center DTC Yes  No  

Licensed Home Care Services Agency      LHCSA Yes  No  

Certified Home Health Agency CHHA Yes  No  

Hospice HSP Yes  No  

Adult Home ADH Yes  No  

Assisted Living Program ALP Yes  No  

Long Term Home Health Care Program    LTHHCP Yes  No  

Enriched Housing Program EHP Yes  No  

Health Maintenance Organization HMO Yes  No  

Other OTH Yes  No  
 
For each facility or agency referenced above, enter the name, the PFI and facility type in the chart 
below.   
  

 FACILITY NAME:  PFI     
FACILITY 
TYPE 

1                     

2                     

3                     

4                     

5                     

6                     

7                     

8                     

9                     

10                     

 
Attach additional sheet if necessary. 
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In addition to the information provided on the above chart, provide a complete list of all health care, 
adult care, behavioral, or mental health facilities, programs or agencies located outside New York 
State that are affiliated with the applicant corporation, as well as with parent, member and 
subsidiary corporations.  For each health care entity identified, provide the full name, address, and 
type of services provided.  In conjunction with this list, provide documentation from the regulatory 
agency in the state(s) where affiliations are noted, reflecting that the facilities/programs/agencies 
have operated in substantial compliance with applicable codes, rules and regulations for the past 
ten years (or for the period of the affiliation, whichever is shorter).  To assist you in securing this 
information, a recommended form and a sample letter of inquiry are provided in Schedule 2 D. 

Please list the facilities outside of New York State that are owned or controlled by the applicant: 

FACILITY NAME AND ADDRESS: Services provided: STATE/ 
COUNTRY 

FACILITY 
TYPE 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have signed this instrument and direct that it be filed with 
the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. 

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Melissa Scholl, OSF 

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Jeff Belt        

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Thomas Buffamante 

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Martin Digel        

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Pierre Dionne, M.D. 

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Timothy Finan     

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Luis Gonzalez, M.D. 

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Muhammed Javed, M.D.  

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Brenda McGee     

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Daniel McCune     

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Lisa Fiorentino, Ph.D, R.N. 

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Jeannine Schoenecker        

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
David Prince        

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Lynda Quick        

Dated: ______________,  2017   _________________________________________
Julie Marasco        
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have signed this instrument and direct that it be filed with 
the minutes of the proceedings of the Board. 

 
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Melissa Scholl, OSF        
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Jeff Belt                        
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Thomas Buffamante        
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Martin Digel               
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Pierre Dionne, M.D.        
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Timothy Finan            
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Luis Gonzalez, M.D.        
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Muhammed Javed, M.D.        
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Brenda McGee            
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Daniel McCune            
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Lisa Fiorentino, Ph.D, R.N.       
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Jeannine Schoenecker              
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

David Prince               
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Lynda Quick               
 
Dated: ______________,  2017              _________________________________________

Julie Marasco                
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OLEAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Operating activities:

Change in net assets (7,774,832)$   (2,263,642)$   

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows  

  from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 7,941,963       7,498,627      

Provision for bad debts 2,989,082       4,106,218      

Net realized and unrealized losses on investments 1,393,835       789,280

Loss on disposal of property and equipment 25,727 -

Contribution - forgiveness of debt from BRMC 1,852,000       -

Contribution - forgiveness of advances to physician group 3,791,654       -

Pension liability adjustment 1,113,815        4,728,509      

Net depreciation of funds held in trust 2,819,171 458,732

Net change in other current assets and current liabilities:

Accounts receivable (4,910,000) (4,843,880)     

Other receivables 503,202 (933,705)       

Supplies (89,228)          (142,763)       

Prepaid expenses 107,237          209,972

Accounts payable (90,415)          (1,964,480)     

Accrued expenses (8,066)            1,145,470      

Estimated third-party payor settlements (501,284) 48,977          

Net operating activities 9,163,861       8,837,315      

Investing activities:

Property and equipment purchases (3,115,666)      (3,416,023)     

Purchases of investments (2,698,627)     (1,849,106)     

Proceeds from sale of investments 1,845,528       2,340,694      

Other assets (1,851,347)      (1,721,765)     

Net investing activities (5,820,112)      (4,646,200)     

Financing activities:

Principal payments on long-term debt (2,539,193) (2,320,980)     

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 804,556 1,870,135      

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 8,754,321       6,884,186      

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 9,558,877$     8,754,321$    

See accompanying notes. 5



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Operating activities:

Change in net assets (2,589,262)$  (2,005,379)$   

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows

  from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 3,068,162      3,003,404      

Provision for bad debts 1,549,877      2,520,434      

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (1,852,000) -

Net realized and unrealized (gains) losses on investments 94,462          (119,256)

Pension liability adjustment 4,177,729      4,811,899      

Net change in other current assets and current liabilities:

Accounts receivable 112,857         (3,085,650)     

Other receivables (471,719)        (284,540)

Supplies 95,036          (121,330)

Prepaid expenses 232,182         242,281         

Accounts payable (1,166,771)     (961,477)

Accrued expenses (1,202,451)     (2,030,035)     

Estimated third-party payor settlements (205,702)       192,741         

Net operating activities 1,842,400      2,163,092      

Investing activities:

Property and equipment purchases (963,273)       (1,470,139)     

Assets limited as to use (213,476)       726,983         

Other assets 83,885          (619,560)

Net investing activities (1,092,864) (1,362,716)     

Financing activities:

Net short-term borrowings - 7,669            

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt - 1,000,000      

Principal payments on long-term debt (1,456,253) (1,088,073)     

Net financing activities (1,456,253) (80,404)         

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (706,717)       719,972         

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning 1,420,783      700,811         

Cash and cash equivalents - ending 714,066$       1,420,783$    

See accompanying notes. 5



OLEAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Unrestricted revenue:

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts) 112,239,069$  108,804,242$  

Less: provision for bad debts (2,989,082)      (4,106,218)      

Net patient service revenue 109,249,987    104,698,024    

Other revenue 5,920,856       5,627,192

Total unrestricted revenue 115,170,843    110,325,216    

Expenses:

Salaries 43,926,093     42,583,768      

Employee benefits 13,004,633      12,049,153      

Purchased services 23,248,971      22,644,246      

Supplies 15,845,137      15,684,948      

Other 8,220,383       7,397,302

Medical malpractice costs 822,300          915,094          

Depreciation and amortization 7,941,963 7,498,627

Interest 485,620          469,319          

Total expenses 113,495,100    109,242,457    

Income from operations 1,675,743 1,082,759

Other income:

Investment income 715,326 1,094,581

Contributions and other, net 222,204          491,607          

Total other income, net 937,530          1,586,188

Excess of revenue over expenses 2,613,273 2,668,947

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (1,600,481)      (1,531,099)      

Contribution - forgiveness of debt from BRMC (Note 13) (1,852,000)      -

Contribution - forgiveness of advances to physican group (Note 5) (3,791,654)      -

Pension liability adjustment (Note 8) (1,113,815)       (4,728,509)      

Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes (Note 9) 757,250          1,296,033

Change in unrestricted net assets (4,987,427)$    (2,294,628)$    

See accompanying notes. 3



OLEAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess of revenue over expenses 2,613,273$      2,668,947$       

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (1,600,481)      (1,531,099)

Contribution - forgiveness of debt from BRMC (Note 13) (1,852,000)      -

Contribution - forgiveness of advances to physican group (Note 5) (3,791,654)      -

Pension liability adjustment (1,113,815)       (4,728,509)

Net assets released from restrictions for capital purposes 757,250          1,296,033         

Change in unrestricted net assets (4,987,427)      (2,294,628)

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Change in unrealized gains on investments 31,766            489,718           

Net depreciation of funds held in trust (2,178,126)      (615,675)          

Proceeds from assets held in trust 1,543,929 1,951,553         

Net assets released from restrictions (1,543,929)      (1,951,553)

Change in temporarily restricted net assets (2,146,360)      (125,957)          

Permanently restricted net assets:

Net appreciation (depreciation) of funds held in trust (641,045)         156,943           

Change in net assets (7,774,832)      (2,263,642)

Net assets - beginning 101,633,972    103,897,614     

Net assets - ending 93,859,140$    101,633,972$   

See accompanying notes. 4



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Unrestricted revenue:

Patient service revenue (net of contractual allowances and discounts) 62,032,516$    69,999,932$     

Less:  provision for bad debts (1,549,877)       (2,520,434)

Net patient service revenue 60,482,639      67,479,498       

Other revenue 4,296,225        4,220,347         

Total unrestricted revenue 64,778,864      71,699,845       

Expenses:

Salaries 26,288,385      28,996,608       

Employee benefits 6,175,614        6,941,196         

Purchased services 10,900,960      10,634,958       

Professional fees 2,263,606        2,455,661         

Supplies 8,285,656        9,235,768         

Other 6,849,609        7,356,380         

Depreciation and amortization 3,068,162        3,003,404         

Interest 863,086           997,835           

Total expenses 64,695,078      69,621,810       

Income from operations 83,786 2,078,035         

Other income:

Investment income 161,355           876,985           

Contributions and other, net (309,608)         80,906             

Total other income, net (148,253) 957,891           

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (64,467)           3,035,926         

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (225,572)         (703,509)          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital (Note 11) 1,852,000        -

Pension liability adjustment (Note 6) (4,177,729)       (4,811,899)

Net assets released from restrictions (Note 7) 98,370 441,912           

Change in unrestricted net assets (2,517,398)$     (2,037,570)$      

See accompanying notes. 3



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the years ended December 31, 2015 2014

Unrestricted net assets:

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses (64,467)$         3,035,926$       

Change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (225,572)         (703,509)          

Contribution - forgiveness of debt to Olean General Hospital 1,852,000        -

Pension liability adjustment (4,177,729)       (4,811,899)

Net assets released from restrictions 98,370 441,912           

Change in unrestricted net assets (2,517,398)       (2,037,570)

Temporarily restricted net assets:

Contributions received 26,506 474,103           

Net assets released from restrictions (98,370)           (441,912)          

Change in temporarily restricted net assets (71,864) 32,191             

Change in net assets (2,589,262)      (2,005,379)

Net assets - beginning 12,174,248 14,179,627       

Net assets - ending 9,584,986$      12,174,248$     

See accompanying notes. 4



OLEAN GENERAL HOSPITAL

Balance Sheets

December 31, 2015 2014

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 9,558,877$      8,754,321$       

Accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of

$15,353,000 and  $12,360,000  13,414,454       11,493,536       

Other receivables 2,019,709 4,374,911         

Supplies 2,332,866        2,243,638         

Prepaid expenses 2,491,011         2,598,248         

29,816,917       29,464,654       

Property and equipment, net (Note 2) 54,483,789      57,008,901       

Investments (Note 3) 17,510,695       18,051,431       

Assets held by others (Note 4) 34,970,186       37,789,357       

Other assets, net (Note 5) 2,509,775        4,477,806         

139,291,362$   146,792,149$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 6) 2,097,838$      2,244,364$       

Accounts payable 6,227,502        6,317,917         

Accrued salaries and benefits 4,316,914         4,319,621         

Other accrued expenses 3,040,483        2,835,524         

Estimated third-party payor settlements 832,389           1,333,673         

16,515,126       17,051,099       

Long-term debt (Note 6) 13,869,801       13,963,280       

Accrued sick time (Note 7) 721,513            711,399            

Accrued pension liability (Note 8) 14,325,782       13,432,399       

Net assets:

Unrestricted 52,513,537       57,500,964       

Temporarily restricted (Note 9) 17,067,031       19,213,391       

Permanently restricted (Note 9) 24,278,572      24,919,617       

93,859,140       101,633,972

139,291,362$   146,792,149$    

See accompanying notes. 2



BRADFORD REGIONAL MEDICAL CENTER

Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2015 2014

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 714,066$           1,420,783$      

Assets limited as to use - current (Note 3) 804,015             973,554          

Accounts receivable, net of estimated uncollectibles of

  $3,036,000 and $1,486,000 8,133,954          9,796,688        

Other receivables 2,299,951          1,828,232        

Supplies 1,697,521           1,792,557        

Prepaid expenses 721,905             954,087          

14,371,412         16,765,901      

Property and equipment, net (Note 2) 26,953,529        27,836,774      

Assets limited as to use (Note 3) 11,268,702         10,980,149      

Other assets, net 1,340,890          1,464,752        

53,934,533$      57,047,576$    

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings (Note 4) 1,999,669$        1,999,669$      

Current portion of long-term debt (Note 5) 1,545,430          1,378,580        

Accounts payable 6,184,760          8,908,976        

Accrued expenses 4,319,054          4,499,311        

Estimated third-party payor settlements 418,322             624,024          

14,467,235        17,410,560      

Long-term debt (Note 5) 14,944,184         15,680,175      

Accrued pension liability (Note 6) 14,938,128         11,782,593      

Net assets:

Unrestricted 9,294,109          11,811,507      

Temporarily restricted (Note 7) 138,262             210,126          

Permanently restricted (Note 7) 152,615             152,615          

9,584,986          12,174,248      

53,934,533$      57,047,576$    

See accompanying notes. 2
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Architectural Submission  

This Schedule applies to projects with construction, including Articles- 28, 36 & 40, i.e., 
Hospitals, D&TCs, RHCFs, CHHAs, LTHHCPs and Hospices. 

       
 Instructions: Attachments should be saved or scanned as PDF documents.  Most 

scanners will create this format.  The PDF document should be assigned a unique name, so it 
will not be confused with any other attachment.  The title of the attachment, and name of the 
attached PDF file should be entered in the table below.      

              

   
  

 Example: - attachment in PDF format 
Architecture Attachment 

A  
Architecture_attach_A.pdf 

A. Architectural narrative that delineates the project scope 
of the work to meet the determined program needs, 

including functional space. 
The following are suggestions to include in your 

narrative, should they pertain to your project: 
 Intent/Purpose 
 Describe existing physical plant conditions in 

area of work 
 Identify spaces that are considered multi-

function space 
 Changes in capacity: beds / occupants 
 Waiver Requests, potential life safety 

compliance and/or functionality issues 
 New innovative approaches 
 Article 28 space adjacent to non-Article 28 

space 
 

              

B. Final Schematic Design drawings that complement the 
architectural narrative.  Submit electronic (via NYSE-

CON) and hardcopy drawings using DSG-01 guidelines.
              

C. Please select, complete, and submit the appropriate 
Certification Letter from the following link: Architect’s or 

Engineer’s Letter of Certification   
              

D. 
 
 
 

Project involves radiation 
producing equipment? 

Yes  No  

             

If yes, a Physicist’s Report and drawings must be 
attached. 

E. 

Flood zone location? Yes  No   
             

If yes, please provide a FEMA BFE Certificate from the 
FEMA website link www.fema.gov. 
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Environmental Assessment 
 
 
Part I.   
 
The following questions help determine whether the project is "significant" from an environmental standpoint. 

 
1.1 If this application involves establishment, will it involve more than a change of 

name or ownership only, or a transfer of stock or partnership or membership 
interests only, or the conversion of existing beds to the same or lesser number 
of a different level of care beds?                                          

 Yes    No 
         

1.2 Does this plan involve construction and change land use or density?          
1.3 Does this plan involve construction and have a permanent effect on the 

environment if temporary land use is involved? 
         

1.4 Does this plan involve construction and require work related to the disposition 
of asbestos? 

         

                
  

     Part II.              
               

If any question in Part I is answered “yes” the project may be significant and Part II must be completed  If all     
questions in Part II are answered “no” it is likely that the project is not significant.         
               
     

2.1  Does the project involve physical alteration of ten acres or more?          
2.2 If an expansion of an existing facility, is the area physically altered by the 

facility expanding by more than 50% and is the total existing and proposed 
altered area ten acres or more? 

         

2.3 Will the project involve use of ground or surface water or discharge of 
wastewater to ground or surface water in excess of 2,000,000 gallons per 
day? 

         

2.4 If an expansion of an existing facility, will use of ground or surface water or 
discharge of wastewater by the facility increase by more than 50% and 
exceed 2,000,000 gallons per day? 

         

2.5  Will the project involve parking for 1,000 vehicles or more?          
2.6 If an expansion of an existing facility, will the project involve a 50% or greater 

increase in parking spaces and will total parking exceed 1000 vehicles? 
         

2.7 In a city, town, or village of 150,000 population or fewer, will the project entail 
more than 100,000 square feet of gross floor area? 

         

2.8 If an expansion of an existing facility in a city, town, or village of 150,000 
population or fewer, will the project expand existing floor space by more than 
50% so that gross foor area exceeds 100,000 square feet?  

         

2.9 

In a city, town or village of more than 150,000 population, will the project 
entail more than 240,000 square feet of gross floor area? 

         

2.10 
If an expansion of an existing facility in a city, town, or village of more than 
150,000 population, will the project expand existing floor space by more than 
50% so that gross foor area exceeds 240,000 square feet?  
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2.11 In a locality without any zoning regulation about height, will the project 
contain any structure exceeding 100 feet above the original ground area? 

         

2.12 Is the project wholly or partially within an agricultural district certified 
pursuant to Agriculture and Markets Law Article 25, Section 303? 

         

2.13 Will the project significantly affect drainage flow on adjacent sites?          
2.14  Will the project affect any threatened or endangered plants or animal 

species? 
         

2.15  Will the project result in a major adverse effect on air quality?          
2.16  Will the project have a major effect on visual character of the community or 

scenic views or vistas known to be important to the community? 
         

2.17  Will the project result in major traffic problems or have a major effect on 
existing transportation systems? 

         

2.18  Will the project regularly cause objectionable odors, noise, glare, vibration, 
or electrical disturbance as a result of the project's operation? 

         

2.19  Will the project have any adverse impact on health or safety?          
2.20 Will the project affect the existing community by directly causing a growth in 

permanent population of more than five percent over a one-year period or 
have a major negative effect on the character of the community or 
neighborhood? 

         

2.21 
Is the project wholly or partially within, or is it contiguous to any facility or site 
listed on the National Register of Historic Places, or any historic building, 
structure, or site, or prehistoric site, that has been proposed by the 
Committee on the Registers for consideration by the New York State Board 
on Historic Preservation for recommendation to the State Historic Officer for 
nomination for inclusion in said National Register? 

         

2.22 Will the project cause a beneficial or adverse effect on property listed on the 
National or State Register of Historic Places or on property which is 
determined to be eligible for listing on the State Register of Historic Places 
by the Commissioner of Parks, Recreation, and Historic Preservation? 

         

2.23  Is this project within the Coastal Zone as defined in Executive Law, Article 
42? If Yes, please complete Part IV. 
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     Part III. 
      Must be completed if any question on Part II was answered "Yes". 

  
3.1 Are there any other state or local agencies involved in approval of the 

project? If so, fill in Contact Information to Question 3.1 below. 
         

3.2 Has any other agency made an environmental review of this project?  If so, 
give name. 

         

 

3.3 Is there a public controversy concerning environmental aspects of this 
project? If yes, briefly describe the controversy in the space below. 

          

 

 
              Contact Information to Question 3.1 
 

Agency Name:  

Contact Name:  
Address:  
State and Zip Code:  
E-Mail Address:  
Phone Number:  
  
Agency Name:  
Contact Name:  
Address:  
State and Zip Code:  
E-Mail Address:  
Phone Number:  
  
Agency Name:  
Contact Name:  
Address:  
State and Zip Code:  
E-Mail Address:  
Phone Number:  
  
Agency Name:  
Contact Name:  
Address:  
State and Zip Code:  
E-Mail Address:  
Phone Number:  
  
Agency Name:  
Contact Name:  
Address:  
State and Zip Code:  
E-Mail Address:  
Phone Number:  
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 Part IV. Storm and Flood Mitigation 

 
Please use the FEMA Flood Designations scale below as a guide to answering Part IV. Refer to Attachment A on page 
5.   

 
   
 

1. Are you in a flood plain? If so, what classification?  
 

a. Moderate to Low Risk Area _______________              
b. High Risk Area                     _______________ 
c. High Risk Coastal Area        _______________ 
d. Undetermined Risk Area      _______________ 
  

         

2. 
Are you in a designated evacuation zone?  If so, which zone _____________ 

         

3. Does this project reflect the post Hurricane Lee, and or Irene, and 
Superstorm Sandy mitigation standards?   
100-Year Floodplain _____________   500-Year Floodplain _____________ 
__ 

         

 
 
The Elevation Certificate provides a way for a community to document compliance with the community’s floodplain 
management ordinance. 
 
http://www.fema.gov/media-library-data/20130726-1437-20490-3457/f 053 elevationcertificate jan13.pdf 
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New York State Department of Health

Certificate of Need Application

1.) Project Cost  Summary data:
Total Source

Project Description:

Project Cost $0
Schedule 8b, column C, line 
8

Total Basic Cost of Construction $0
Schedule 8b, column C, line 
6

Total Cost of Moveable Equipment $0
Schedule 8b, column C, line 
5.1

Cost/Per Square Foot for New 
Construction (calculated on Table 
10)  Schedule 10
Cost/Per Square Foot for  
Renovation Construction  Schedule10

Total Incremental Operating Cost ( 
From Schedule 13C, 17C, or 19D)  Schedule 13c, 17c or 19d

Amount Financed (as $)  Schedule 9
Percentage Financed as % of 
Total Cost (From Schedule 9)  Schedule 9

Depreciation Life (in years)   

           

Anticipated Start Date

Anticipated Completion Date

Schedule 8A Summarized Project Cost and Construction Dates

This schedule is required for all Establishment Applications and Full or Administrative Review 
Construction Applications.

2) Construction Dates

Schedule 8b

DOH 155-B
(3/19/2013)

Schedule 8A 
1







 

DOH 155-B     Schedule 9 Cover                  
 (12/2014) 

Schedule 9 –  
CON Forms Regarding 

Project Financing 
 
Contents: 
 

o Schedule 9 - Proposed Plan for Project Financing 
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(12/2014) 

Schedule 9 Proposed Plan for Project Financing: 
 
I. Summary of Proposed Financial plan:         
Check all that apply and fill in corresponding amounts.         
              

 Type Amount 

      A.  Lease        

      B.  Cash       

      C.  Land       

      D.  Other       

      E.  Mortgage, Notes, or Bonds       

  
Total Project Financing (Sum A to E) 
(equals line 10, Column C of Sch. 8b) 

       

 
If refinancing is used, please complete area below. 
 

   Refinancing       

  
  Total Mortgage/Notes/Bonds (Sum E)        
   plus Refinancing:  

      

 
II. Details 
 
A. Leases 
              

  
Not 

Applicable Title of attachment 
1. List each lease with corresponding cost as if purchased each leased 
item.  Breakdown each lease by total project cost and subproject costs, 
if applicable. 

         

2. Attach a copy of the proposed lease(s).  
  

  
       

3. Submit an affidavit indicating any business or family relationships 
between principals of the landlord and tenant. 

         

4. If applicable, provide a copy of the lease assignment agreement and 
the Landlord's consent to the proposed lease assignment. 

         

5. If applicable, identify separately the total square footage to be 
occupied by the Article 28 facility and the total square footage of the 
building. 

         

6. Attach two letters from independent realtors verifying square footage 
rate. 
 

         

7.  For all capital leases as defined by FASB Statement No.  13, 
"Accounting for Leases", provide the net present value of the monthly, 
quarterly or annual lease payments.   
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B. Cash - Not required for limited review         
   

Type Amount 
Accumulated Funds       
Sale of Existing Assets       
Gifts (fundraising program)       
Government Grants       
Other        
TOTAL CASH       

 

  Not Applicable Title of attachment 
1. Provide a breakdown of the sources of cash.  See sample table above. 

         

2. Attach a copy of the latest certified financial statement and current internal financial 
reports to cover the balance of time to date. If applicable, address the reason(s) for 
any operational losses, negative working capital and/or negative equity or net asset 
position and explain in detail the steps implemented to improve operations. 

 
2a. In establishment applications for Residential Health Care Facilities, attach a copy 
of the latest certified financial statement and current internal financial reports to 
cover the balance of time to date for affiliated Residential Health Care Facilities. If 
applicable, address the reason(s) for any operational losses, negative working 
capital and/or negative equity or net asset position and explain in detail the steps 
implemented to improve operations. 

  
  
       

3. If amounts are listed in "Accumulated Funds" provide cross-reference to certified 
financial statement or Schedule 2b, if applicable. 

         

4. Attach a full and complete description of the assets to be sold, if applicable. 
         

5. If amounts are listed in "Gifts (fundraising program)":     
    
 Provide a breakdown of total amount expected, amount already raised, and any 

terms and conditions affixed to pledges. 
 If a professional fundraiser has been engaged, submit fundraiser's contract and 

fundraising plan. 
 Provide a history of recent fund drives, including amount pledged and amount 

collected 

         

6. If amounts are listed in "Government Grants":     
  
 List the grant programs which are to provide the funds with corresponding 

amounts.  Include the date the application was submitted.   
    

 Provide documentation of eligibility for the funds.  
 Attach the name and telephone number of the contact person at the awarding 

Agency(ies). 

         

7. If amounts are listed in "Other" attach a description of the source of financial 
support and documentation of its availability. 
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8. Current Department policy expects a minimum equity contribution of 10% of total 
project cost (Schedule 8b line 10) ) for all Article 28 facilities with the exception of 
Residential Health Care Facilities that require 25% of total project cost (Schedule 
8b, line 10). 

          

 
C. Mortgage, Notes, or Bonds - Not required for limited review      
  

1. Provide a breakdown of the terms of the mortgage.  See sample table below.    
   

  Total Project Units 
Interest        % 
Term        Years 

Payout Period        Years 
Principal        $ 

  
              
             

  
Not 

Applicable Title of attachment 
2. Attach a copy of a letter of interest from the intended source of 
permanent financing that indicates principal, interest, term, and 
payout period.   

         

3. If New York State Dormitory Authority (DASNY) financing, then 
attach a copy of a letter from a mortgage banker. 

  
  
       

4. If the financing of this project becomes part of a larger overall 
financing, then a new business plan inclusive of a feasibility package 
for the overall financing will be required for DOH review prior to 
proceeding with the combined financing. 

         

       
      
D. Land: Not required for limited review         
  

1.  Provide details for the land including but not limited to; appraised value, historical cost, and purchase price.   
See sample table below. 
 

 Total Project 
Appraised Value       
Historical Cost       
Purchase Price       
Other       

 
  

  
Not 

Applicable Title of attachment 
2.  If amounts are listed in "Other", attach documentation and a 
description as applicable.          

3.  Attach a copy of the Appraisal.  Supply the appraised date and the 
name of the appraiser.  

  
  
       

4.  Submit a copy of the proposed purchase/option agreement. 
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5.  Provide an affidavit indicating any and all relationships between 
seller and the proposed operator/owner. 

         

 
 
E. Other - Not required for limited review         
          

1.  Provide listing and breakdown of other financing mechanisms.      
            

  Total Project 
Notes        
Stock        
Other        

 
     

  
Not 

Applicable Title of attachment 
2.  Attach documentation and a description of the method of financing.
            

    
F. Refinancing - Not required for limited Review         

              

  
Not 

Applicable Title of attachment 
1.  Provide a breakdown of the terms of the refinancing, including 
principal, interest rate, and term remaining.           

2.  Attach a description of the mortgage to be refinanced.  Provide full 
details of the existing debt and refinancing plan inclusive of original 
and current amount, term, assumption date, and refinancing fees. The 
term of the debt to be refunded may not exceed the remaining 
average useful life of originally financed assets.  If existing mortgage 
debt will not be refinanced, provide documentation of consent from 
existing lien holders of the proposed financing plan.   

  
  
       

              
   



 

 

  d #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

   #N/A

 #N/A  

D E F G I

New York State Department of Health   

Certificate of Need Application

H

Alterat-
ions, 

Scope of 
work 

S
ub project

B
uilding 

F
loor 

section

Schedule 10 - Space & Construction Cost Distribution 

 For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  * Codes 
for completing this table are found in Schedule 10 lookups sheet.(see tab below)

A B C

#N/A

Location

Description of Functional 
Code (enter Functional 

code in Column D, 
description appears here 

automatically)
Functional 
Gross SF

Construc- 
tion cost per 

SF

Total 
construction 

cost

   

  

F
unctional 

C
ode

 

  #N/A  

Indicate if this project is: New Construction: Renovation:

DOH 155-B
(09/09/2004) Schedule 10 Page 1



New York State Department of Health   

Certificate of Need Application
Schedule 10 - Space & Construction Cost Distribution 

    #N/A

DOH 155-B
(09/09/2004) Schedule 10 Page 2



New York State Department of Health   

Certificate of Need Application
Schedule 10 - Space & Construction Cost Distribution 

section

F
unctional 

C
ode

I

Location

Description of Functional 
Code (enter Functional 

code in Column D, 
description appears here 

automatically)
Functional 
Gross SF

Construction 
cost per SF

Total 
construction 

cost

Alteratio
ns, 

Scope of 
work 

S
ub project

B
uilding 

F
loor 

 

 

#N/A

E F G HA B C D

  

 

  #N/A

 

  #N/A

 

  #N/A

  

  #N/A

  #N/A

  #N/A  

  #N/A

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

 

  #N/A  

0
  #N/A  

Totals for Whole Project: 0 0  

DOH 155-B
(09/09/2004) Schedule 10 Page 3





  

 

  #N/A

 

  d #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

 

   #N/A

New York State Department of Health   

Certificate of Need Application

   #N/A

Schedule 10 - Space & Construction Cost Distribution with Subprojects

 For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *
Codes for completing this table are found in Schedule 10 lookups sheet.(see tab below)

A B C D E F G I

Location

Description of Functional 
Code (enter Functional 

code in Column D, 
description appears here 

automatically)
Functional 
Gross SF

Construction 
cost per SF

Total 
construction 

cost

Alteratio
ns, 

Scope of 
work 

S
ub project

B
uilding 

F
loor 

   

H

#N/A

section

F
unctional 

C
ode

 

  #N/A  

Indicate if this project is: New Construction: Renovation:

DOH 155-B
(09/09/2004) Schedule 10 Page 1



New York State Department of Health   

Certificate of Need Application
Schedule 10 - Space & Construction Cost Distribution with Subprojects

section

F
unctional 

C
ode

I

Location

Description of Functional 
Code (enter Functional 

code in Column D, 
description appears here 

automatically)
Functional 
Gross SF

Construction 
cost per SF

Total 
construction 

cost

Alteratio
ns, 

Scope of 
work 

S
ub project

B
uilding 

F
loor 

 

 

#N/A

E F G HA B C D

  

 

  #N/A

 

  #N/A

 

  #N/A

  

  #N/A

  #N/A

  #N/A  

  #N/A

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

  #N/A  

  #N/A   
Raw totals for whole project: 0 0 0  

   

DOH 155-B
(09/09/2004) Schedule 10 Page 2





Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

FUNCTIONAL CODES Service Description:
  BASELINE SERVICES

701
General Baseline Services (includes Anesthesia, Emergency 
Procedures, Nursing and Physician Services)

733 Baseline Clinical Laboratory Service
734 Baseline Dietetic
736 Baseline Medical/Surgical
741 Baseline Operating Room
742 Baseline Pharmaceutical Service
744 Baseline Recovery Room

INPATIENT SERVICES
101 Acute Renal Dialysis
151 Alcohol Detoxification
152 Alcohol Rehabilitation
102 Ambulance
301 Audiology
201 Blood Services
103 Burn Center
104 Burn Program
203 Cardiac Catheterization - Adult
204 Cardiac Catheterization  - Pediatric
205 Cardio-Pulmonary Function Analysis
206 Cleft Palate Center
105 Coronary Care
208 Cystoscopy
209 Dental
210 Diagnostic Radiology
153 Drug Detoxification
154 Drug Rehabilitation
106 Emergency Department
107 Intensive Care
213 Kidney Transplantation
214 Maternity
302 Medical Rehabilitation
108 Neonatal Continuing Care
109 Neonatal Intensive Care

Use the following listing for hospital proposals:

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

This appendix lists the functional areas and services, beds and equipment, by facility type, which 
should be used in describing your proposals.  They will be reflected on your operating certificate when 
approved.  In listing these services in the applicat

HOSPITAL

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 1



Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

110 Neonatal Intermediate Care
303 Occupational Therapy
215 Cardiac Surgery - Adult
216 Cardiac Surgery  - Pediatric
356 Pathology Laboratory
218 Pediatric
111 Pediatric - ICU
304 Physical Therapy
112 Poison Control Center
221 Psychiatric
222 Psychiatric  - Day/Night 
230 Radioactive Materials - Diagnostic
231 Radioactive Materials  - Therapeutic
224 Radioisotope Implantation
226 Respiratory Care
227 Respiratory Therapy
361 Self Care
362 Social Work Service
305 Speech-Language Pathology
228 Therapeutic Radiology
306 Vocational Rehabilitation

OUTPATIENT SERVICES
491 Alcohol Rehabilitation O/P
402 Ambulatory Surgery
451 Audiology O/P
452 C.O.R.F.
423 Chronic Renal Dialysis O/P
407 Dental O/P
493 Drug Rehabilitation O/P
471 Family Planning O/P
473 Home Dialysis Training O/P
453 Medical Rehabilitation O/P
494 Methadone Maintenance O/P
454 Occupational Therapy O/P
425 Organized Outpatient Department
415 Outpatient Surgery
477 Part-Time Clinic(s)
416 Pediatric O/P
455 Physical Therapy O/P
418 Prenatal O/P
420 Psychiatric O/P
424 Respiratory Therapy O/P
479 Social Work Service O/P
457 Speech-Language Pathology O/P
429 Venereal Disease O/P

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 2



Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

458 Vocational Rehabilitation O/P
BED TYPE

151 Alcohol Detoxification
152 Alcohol Rehabilitation
103 Burns Care
105 Coronary Care
153 Drug Detoxification
154 Drug Rehabilitation
107 Intensive Care
214 Maternity
302 Medical Rehabilitation
701 Medical/Surgical
221 Psychiatric
108 Neonatal Continuing Care
109 Neonatal Intensive Care
110 Neonatal Intermediate Care
218 Pediatric
111 Pediatric ICU
220 Prisoner
226 Respiratory
361 Self Care
364 Special Use

EQUIPMENT TYPE
501 CT Scanner
502 Cobalt Unit
503 Echo Cardiograph
504 Hyperbaric Chamber
505 Linear Accelerator
506 Megavoltage Unit
508 Ultrasound
601 Nuclear Magnetic Resonance Demonstration

RESIDENTIAL HEALTH CARE FACILITY 
Use the following listing for Residential Health Care Facilities

CON
CODES BASELINE SERVICES

702 General Baseline Services - HRF's (includes Medical Services)
703 General Baseline Services - SNF's (includes Medical Services)
731 Baseline Activities Program
734 Baseline Dietetic
737 Baseline Nursing
742 Baseline Pharmaceutical Service
746 Baseline Social Work Service

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 3



Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

OPTIONAL SERVICES
301 Audology
352 Clinical Laboratory Service
209 Dental
210 Diagnostic Radiology
474 Non-Occupant Services
303 Occupational Therapy
217 Optometry
304 Physical Therapy
357 Physician Services
219 Podiatry
223 Psychological
359 Religious Services and Counseling
227 Respiratory Therapy
305 Speech-Language Pathology

BED TYPES
703 SRF

EQUIPMENT TYPES
501 CT Scanner
503 ECHO Cardiograph
508 Ultrasound

DIAGNOSTIC AND TREATMENT CENTER
Use the following listing for Diagnostic and Treatment Center proposals:
CON 
CODES BASELINE SERVICES

704 General Baseline (Includes Medical Staff)

OPTIONAL SERVICES
401 Abortion O/P
491 Alcohol Rehabilitation O/P
451 Audiology O/P
406 Clinical Laboratory Service
452 C.O.R.F.
407 Dental O/P
408 Diagnostic Radiology O/P
492 Drug Abuse Screening O/P
495 Drug Detoxification O/P
493 Drug Rehabilitation O/P
471 Family Planning O/P
472 Health Education O/P
473 Home Dialysis Training O/P
453 Medical Rehabilitation O/P

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 4



Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

494 Methadone Maintenance O/P
413 Multiphasic Screening O/P
475 Nursing O/P
476 Nutritional O/P
454 Occupational Therapy O/P
414 Optometry O/P
477 Part-Time Clinic(s)
416 Pediatric O/P
478 Prenatal O/P
455 Physical Therapy O/P
417 Podiatry O/P
418 Prenatal O/P
419 Primary Medical Care O/P
420 Psychiatric O/P

HOME HEALTH AGENCY
Use the following listing for Home Health Agency proposals:
CON 
CODES  

705 General Baseline (includes Home Health Aide
and Medical Supplies, Equipment and Appliances)

738 Baseline Nursing (Contract)
739 Baseline Nursing (Direct)

OPTIONAL SERVICES
481 Medical Social Services O/P
476 Nutritional O/P
454 Occupational Therapy O/P
455 Physical Therapy O/P
482 Personal Care
483 Physicians Services
424 Respiratory Therapy
457 Speech-Language Pathology O/P

LONG-TERM HOME HEALTH CARE PROGRAM
Use the following listing for Long-Term Home Health Care Program Proposals
CON 
CODES BASELINE SERVICES

707

General Baseline Services (includes Audiology; Home Health Aide; 
Homemaker, Housekeeper; Medical Social Work; Medical Supplies; 
Equipment And Appliances; Nutritional; Occupational Therapy; Personal 
Care; Physical Therapy; Respiratory Therapy; and Speech-L

738 Baseline Nursing (Contract)
739 Baseline Nursing (Direct)

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 5



Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

OPTIONAL SERVICES
357 Physician Services

PATIENT CAPACITY
707 Designated patient capacity

HOSPICE
Use the following listing for Hospice Proposals:
 
CON 
CODES BASELINE SERVICES

706

General Baseline Services (includes Bereavement, Home Health Aide, 
Homemaker, Housekeeper, Nursing, Medical Supplies, Equipment & 
Appliances, Nutritional, Pastoral Care, Personal Care, Physician 
Services and Psychological)

732 Baseline Audiology
733 Baseline Clinical Laboratory Service
735 Baseline Inpatient Services
740 Baseline Occupational Therapy
742 Baseline Pharmaceutical Service
743 Baseline Physical Therapy
745 Baseline Respiratory Therapy
746 Baseline Social Work Service
747 Baseline Speech-Language Pathology

BEDS
706 Hospice beds

EXTENSION CLINIC
Use the following listing for extension clinic proposals:
CON 
CODES BASELINE SERVICES

401 Abortion O/P
491 Alcohol Rehabilitation O/P
402 Ambulatory Surgery
451 Audiology O/P
452 C.O.R.F.
423 Chronic Renal Dialysis O/P
406 Clinical Laboratory Service
407 Dental O/P
408 Diagnostic Radiology
492 Drug Abuse Screening O/P
495 Drug Detoxification O/P
493 Drug Rehab O/P
471 Family Planning O/P

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 6



Certificate of Need Application

For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

472 Health Education O/P
473 Home Dialysis Training O/P
453 Medical Rehab O/P
494 Methadone Maintenance O/P
413 Multiphasic Screening O/P
475 Nursing O/P
476 Nutritional O/P
454 Occupational Therapy O/P
414 Optometry O/P
425 Organized Outpatient Dept.
477 Part-Time Cinic(s)
416 Pediatric O/P
478 Pharmaceutical Service O/P
455 Physical Therapy O/P
417 Podiatry O/P
418 Prenatal O/P
419 Primary Medical Care O/P
420 Psychiatric O/P
421 Psychological O/P
456 Recreational Therapy O/P
424 Respiratory Therapy O/P
479 Social Work Service O/P
457 Speech-Language Pathology O/P
426 TB Respiratory
427 Therapeutic Radiology O/P
429 Venereal Disease O/P
458 Vocational Rehab O/P
480 Well Child Care O/P

EQUIPMENT
423 Chronic Renal Dialysis Stations
502 Cobalt Unit
501 CT Scanner
503 Echo Cardiograph
505 Linear Accelerator
506 Megavoltage Unit
508 Ultrasound

NON-MEDICAL FUNCTIONAL AREAS
Use these codes for all health care facilities to describe non-medical functional areas:

CODE NON-MEDICAL SERVICES
901 Administration (Routine)
902 General Administration
903 Admitting

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 7
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For Article 28, 36, and 40 Construction Projects Requiring Full, Administrative or Limited Review  *

LIST OF FUNCTIONAL AREAS AND SERVICES, BEDS & EQUIPMENT BY FACILITY TYPE

New York State Department of Health

Space & Construction Cost Distribution - Appendix A

904 Accounting/Financial Service
905 Administrative Personnel
906 Data Processing
907 Fund Appeal/Volunteers
908 Medical/Social Services
909 Energy Proposal
910 Telephone System
920 Public Areas
921 Cafeteria
922 Chapel/Meditation
923 Lobby/Waiting/Public Entrance
924 Coffee/Gift Shop/Flower/Canteen/Snack Bar
930 Education/Research
931 Supervising Physicians' Offices (Hospital

Physicians involved in research)
932 Nursing School
933 Medical Laboratory/Auditorium
934 Research (Laboratory areas)
935 Medical Teaching (for residents and interns; Classrooms)
940 Industrial/Service Functions
941 Central Sterile and Supply
942 Laundry/Linen
943 Maintenance/Housekeeping
944 Medical Supplies/Central Services/Storage
945 Parking Structures (free-standing structures)
946 Staff Lockers
947 Tunnels, Bridges and Other Enclosed 

Circulation Spaces
948 Equipment Maintenance (includes Biomedical

Engineering Service)
960 Building System
961 Site Work (Replant grass, signs, etc.)
962 On-site Parking, Excluding Garage Structure (parking lot)
963 Outside Utilities (water, sprinkler, lights,

Outside sewer, etc.)
964 Structure, Including Finisher (Paint building, etc.)
965 Heating/Ventilation/Air Conditioning (HVAC)
966 Sanitary System (Inner plumbing and ventilation)
967 Electrical System
968 Vertical & Horizontal Mechanized Movement (elevators, cart system)
980 Other Functions
981 Private Physicians Offices
982 Housing on Call (Interns, residents, physicians)
983 Housing Other (for parents of young patients, visitors, etc.)
984 Medically Related Computer

DOH 155-B
09/09/2004 Schedule 10 Lookups 8
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1  

 
Schedule 13 B. Staffing  
Table 13B - 1:  See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required.  
Use the “Other” categories for providers, such as dentists, that are not mentioned in the staff categories. If a 
project involves multiple sites please create a staffing table for each site.  
 

 Total Project   Subproject number        
 

A B C D 
       Number of FTEs to the Nearest Tenth 

Staffing Categories Current Year* First Year 
incremental 

Third Year 
incremental 

1.  Management & Supervision 59.1 43.2 42.8 

2.  Technician & Specialist 47.4 28.1 27.9 

3.  Registered Nurses 207.3 105.6 104.7 

4.  Licensed Practical Nurses 38.6 34.7 34.4 

5.  Aides, Orderlies & Attendants 108.5 74.6 73.9 

6.  Physicians 8.4 14.3 14.2 

7.  PGY Physicians 0.0 0.0 0.0 

8.  Physicians' Assistants 4.9 1.1 1.0 

9.  Nurse Practitioners 5.3 4.2 4.2 

10.  Nurse Midwife 0.0 0.0 0.0 

11. Social Workers and Psychologist** 3.2 6.3 6.3 

12. Physical Therapists and PT Assistants 12.2 4.2 4.2 

13. Occupational Therapists and OT 
Assistants 

8.5 1.8 1.8 

14. Speech Therapists and Speech Assistants 0.4 0.0 0.0 

15. Other Therapists and Assistants 13.4 5.5 5.4 

16.  Infection Control, Environment and Food 
Service 

52.3 42.4 42.0 

17. Clerical & Other Administrative 170.9 91.9 91.1 

18. Other Accounting 2.1 1.0 1.0 

19. Other Pharmacy 19.6 7.4 7.3 

20. Other Dental, other Misc 39.9 22.7 22.5 

21.  Total Number of Employees 802.0 489.0 484.7 
*Last complete year prior to submitting application 
**Use only for RHCF and D and T Center proposals 
Describe how the number and mix of staff were determined: 
The FTE figures above are based on the internal statistics, prorated based on 2015 cost report for 
Olean General.    
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2  

1.) All diagnostic and treatment centers should complete the following section:   
   
. 

Name of medical director:         

License number of the Medical 
Director 

       

 

Not Applicable: Title of Attachment 
Filename of 
attachment 

Attach a copy of the medical director's 
curriculum vitae.    

            

 

Acute care facility with which an 
affiliation agreement is being 
negotiated:  

       

In the space below, Indicate the status of those negotiations:  
      

 
 
 
Distance in miles from the proposed facility to the acute 
care affiliate. 

      

Distance in minutes of travel time from the proposed 
facility to the acute care affiliate. 

      

Name of the acute care facility, nearest the proposed 
facility: 

      

Distance in miles from the proposed facility to the nearest 
acute care facility: 

      

Distance in minutes of travel time from the proposed 
facility to the nearest acute care facility. 

      

 

 
 

Not Applicable: Title of Attachment 
Filename of 
attachment 

Attach a copy of a letter of intent or the 
affiliation agreement, if appropriate.  
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Table 13B - 2.   Ambulatory surgery centers should complete the following Table:  
  
 List all practitioners -- including surgeons, Dentists and Podiatrists, who have expressed an interest in practicing at the Center.   
 NOTE:  Attach copies of letters from each giving the number and type of procedures he or she expects to perform per year. 
 

Practitioner's Name License No. Specialty (s) 

Board 
Certified or 

Eligible 

Expected 
Number of 
Procedures 

List hospitals where 
Physician has Admitting 
Privileges: 

Title and File Name of 
attachment  

                     YES   
 

 NO  

                    

                     YES   
 

 NO  

                    

                     YES   
 

 NO  

                    

                     YES   
 

 NO  

                    

                     YES   
 

 NO  

                    

                     YES   
 

 NO  

                    

                     YES   
 

 NO  
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Schedule 13 C. Annual Operating Costs  
    
See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required. 
     
Use this schedule to summarize the first and third full year’s incremental cost for the categories, 
which are affected by this project.  The first full year is defined as the first 12 months of full 
operation after project completion.  Project the first and third full year’s total incremental costs in 
current year dollars.  Current year costs added to first year incremental cost impact should equal 
total first year budget. Current year costs added to third year incremental budget should equal 
total third year budget.  Show cost reductions in parentheses. 
 

 Total Project     
 Subproject Number        

 
Table 13C - 1 
  a b c 

Categories Current Year  
Year 1 
Incremental 
Cost Impact  

 Year 3 
Incremental 
Cost Impact  

Start date of year in question:(m/d/yyyy) 1/1/2016 1/1/2017 1/1/2019 

1.  Salaries and Wages 44,009,877 27,027,095 28,151,814 

1a.  FTEs 802.0 489.0 484.7 

2.  Employee Benefits 14,760,558 6,177,058 6,624,632 

3.  Professional Fees 5,100,927 2,659,796 2,293,129 

4.  Medical & Surgical Supplies 15,008,068 7,209,024 7,110,594 

5.  Non-med., non-surg. Supplies 1,803,707 1,585,200 1,603,139 

6.  Utilities 1,482,163 1,235,285 1,297,822 

7.  Purchased Services 24,911,508 12,117,219 12,612,256 

8.  Other Direct Expenses 2,217,763 5,211,055 5,322,365 

9.  Subtotal (total 1-8) 109,294,571 63,221,732 65,015,751 

10.  Interest  521,439 855,862 765,859 

11.  Depreciation and Rent 7,584,709 3,118,166 3,118,166 

12.  Total Incremental Operating Costs 117,400,719 67,195,760 68,899,776 
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Table 13C - 2 
  a b c 

Inpatient Categories Current Year  
Year 1 
Incremental 
Cost Impact  

 Year 3 
Incremental 
Cost Impact  

Start date of year in question:(m/d/yyyy) 1/1/2016 1/1/2017 1/1/2019 

1.  Salaries and Wages 18,626,562 11,674,436 11,836,295 

1a.  FTEs 339.4 211.2 203.8 

2.  Employee Benefits 6,247,199 2,668,199 2,785,295 

3.  Professional Fees 2,158,896 1,148,907 964,135 

4.  Medical & Surgical Supplies 6,351,954 3,113,960 2,989,615 

5.  Non-med., non-surg. Supplies 963,394 684,732 674,032 

6.  Utilities 627,305 533,585 545,663 

7.  Purchased Services 10,543,446 5,234,070 5,302,762 

8.  Other Direct Expenses 938,637 2,250,931 2,237,763 

9.  Subtotal (total 1-8) 46,257,393 27,308,820 27,335,560 

10.  Interest  220,692 369,692 322,002 

11.  Depreciation and Rent 3,210,122 1,346,901 1,311,018 

12.  Total Incremental Inpatient Operating Costs 49,688,207 29,025,413 28,968,580 

    
 
 
  
Table 13C - 3 
  a b c 

Outpatient Categories Current Year  
Year 1 
Incremental 
Cost Impact  

 Year 3 
Incremental 
Cost Impact  

Start date of year in question:(m/d/yyyy) 1/1/2016 1/1/2017 1/1/2019 

1.  Salaries and Wages 25,383,315 15,352,659 16,315,519 

1a.  FTEs 462.6 277.8 280.9 

2.  Employee Benefits 8,513,359 3,508,859 3,839,337 

3.  Professional Fees 2,942,031 1,510,889 1,328,994 

4.  Medical & Surgical Supplies 8,656,114 4,095,064 4,120,979 

5.  Non-med., non-surg. Supplies 1,040,313 900,468 929,107 

6.  Utilities 854,858 701,700 752,159 

7.  Purchased Services 14,368,062 6,883,149 7,309,494 

8.  Other Direct Expenses 1,279,126 2,960,124 3,084,602 

9.  Subtotal (total 1-8) 
63,037,178 35,912,912 37,680,191 

 
10.  Interest  300,747 486,170 443,857 

11.  Depreciation and Rent 4,374,587 1,771,265 1,807,148 

12.  Total Incremental Outpatient Operating Costs 67,712,512 38,170,347 39,931,196 
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 Title of Attachment Filename of attachment 
1. In an attachment, provide the basis 
and supporting calculations for 
depreciation and rent expense 

  

2. In an attachment, provide the basis 
for interest cost. Separately identify, 
with supporting calculations, interest 
attributed to mortgages and working 
capital 

            

  
 
Any approval of this application is not to be construed as an approval of any of the above 
indicated current or projected operating costs.  Reimbursement of any such costs shall be in 
accordance with and subject to the provisions of Part 86 of 10 NYCRR.  Approval of this 
application does not assure reimbursement of any of the costs indicated therein by payers under 
Title XIX of the Federal Social Security Act (Medicaid) or Article 43 of The State Insurance Law or 
by any other payers. 
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Schedule 13 D: Annual Operating Revenues 
 
See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required. If 
required please submit. If no incremental budget changes, indicate n/a within incremental year 
one and year three. 
 
This schedule is to be used for all proposals except (a) establishment applications for RHCFs and 
D&TCs, and (b) RCHF and D&TC applications which will increase total year current costs by 
more than 10%. 
 
One schedule must be completed for the total project and one for each of the subprojects.  
Indicate which one is being reported by checking the appropriate box at the top of the schedule. 
 
Use this schedule to summarize the current year’s operating revenue, and the first and third 
year’s incremental operating revenue for the categories that are affected by this project. 
 
Table 1.  Enter the current year data in column 1.  This should represent the total revenue for the 
last complete year before submitting the application, using audited data. 
 
Project the first and third year’s total incremental revenue in current year dollars 
 
Current year revenues added to first year incremental revenue impact should equal total first year 
budget. 
 
Current year revenues added to third year incremental revenue impact should equal total third 
year budget.   
 
Revenue reductions should be shown in parentheses. 
 
Tables 2a and 2b.  Enter current year data in the appropriate block.  This should represent 
revenue by payer for the last complete year before submitting the application, using audited data. 
 
Indicate in the appropriate blocks incremental revenues (i.e., additional operating revenues by 
payer to be received during the first and third years of operation after project completion).  As an 
attachment, provide documentation for the rates assumed for each payer.  Where the project will 
result in a rate change, provide supporting calculations.  For managed care, include rates and 
information from which the rates are derived, including payer, enrollees, and utilization 
assumptions. 
 
The total of Inpatient and Outpatient Services at the bottom of tables' 2a and b should equal the 
totals given on line 10 of table 1. 
 
Provide as an attachment to this schedule a cash flow analysis for the first year of operations 
after the changes proposed by the application, which identifies the amount of working capital, if 
any, needed to implement the project.  Please complete Schedule 5, Working Capital Schedule, 
in conjunction with the cash flow analysis.   
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Table 13D - 1 

  a b c 

Categories Current Year  
Year 1 
Incremental 
Revenue Impact  

 Year 3 
Incremental 
Revenue Impact  

Start date of year in question:(m/d/yyyy) 1/1/2016 1/1/2017 1/1/2019 
1.  Daily Hospital Services  28,579,502   20,265,625   21,295,720  

2.  Ambulatory Services  42,620,451   48,624,333   51,095,891  

3.  Ancillary Services  196,088,995   77,765,351   81,718,137  

4.  Total Gross Patient Care Services Rendered  267,288,948   146,655,309   154,109,748  

5.  Deductions from Revenue  158,533,965   83,594,588   87,843,672  

6.  Net Patient Care Services Revenue  108,754,983   63,060,721   66,266,076  

7.  Other Operating Revenue  (Identify sources)    
   -Other Revenue 5,443,796 2,790,610 2,846,701 
  -    
 -    
 -    
8.  Total Operating Revenue (Total 1-7)  114,198,780   65,851,331   69,112,777  

9.  Non-Operating Revenue  241,332   300,000   300,000  

10.  Total Project Revenue  114,440,112   66,151,331   69,412,777  
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Table 13D – 3 

* Various inpatient services may be reimbursed as discharges or days.  Applicant should indicate which
method applies to this table by choosing the appropriate checkbox. 

Patient Days    Patient discharges  

Inpatient Services 
Source of Revenue 

Total Current Year First Year 
Incremental 

Third Year Incremental 

Patient 
Days or 

dis-
charges * 

Net Revenue* Patient 
Days or 

dis-
charges* 

Net Revenue* Patient 
Days or 

dis-
charges* 

Net Revenue* 
% Dollars ($) % based 

on days or 
discharges 

Dollars-$ % based 
on days or 
discharges 

Dollars-$ 

Commercial Fee for 
Service 

2,786 9.9% 6,994,328 1,837 13.2% 3,647,399 1,801 13.2% 3,823,855 

Managed 
Care 

3,479 12.4% 9,439,865 1,563 11.2% 3,132,491 1,532 11.2% 3,284,037 

Medicare Fee for 
Service 

9,914 35.4% 16,300,159 5,159 37.1% 10,119,585 5,057 37.1% 10,354,258 

Managed 
Care 

3,954 14.1% 8,982,087 1,273 9.2% 2,547,341 1,248 9.2% 2,606,414 

Medicaid Fee for 
Service 

3,316 11.9% 1,354,634 942 6.8% 1,808,393 923 6.8% 1,805,333 

Managed 
Care 

4,089 14.6% 3,805,439 2,981 21.5% 5,718,367 2,921 21.5% 5,708,690 

Private Pay 214 0.8% (151,815) 140 1.0% 265,695 136 1.0% 278,666 
OASAS 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
OMH 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
Charity Care 115 0.4% (2) 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
Bad Debt 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
All Other 150 0.5% (695,676) 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
Total 28,017 100% 46,029,019 13,895 100% 27,239,271 13,618 100% 27,861,253 
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Table 13D - 4 

Outpatient Services** 
Source of Revenue 

Total Current Year First Year Incremental Third Year Incremental 

Visits 
Net Revenue* 

Visits 
Net Revenue* 

Visits 
Net Revenue* 

% Dollars ($) % Dollars ($) % Dollars ($) 

Commercial Fee for 
Service 

35,510 20.5% 14,031,064 19,148 14.0% 5,131,142 19,148 14.0% 5,602,302 

Managed 
Care 

25,117 14.4% 11,843,522 25,986 19.0% 6,867,677 25,986 19.0% 7,498,292 

Medicare Fee for 
Service 

43,764 25.3% 14,313,781 53,341 39.0% 13,795,912 53,341 39.0% 14,704,445 

Managed 
Care 

22,249 12.9% 9,685,286 13,678 10.0% 3,617,653 13,678 10.0% 3,855,895 

Medicaid Fee for 
Service 

11,852 6.9% 1,218,802 1,368 1.0% 360,819 1,368 1.0% 375,325 

Managed 
Care 

28,898 16.7% 9,504,139 16,412 12.0% 4,261,069 16,412 12.0% 4,432,361 

Private Pay 2,451 1.4% 784,346 5,470 4.0% 1,422,954 5,470 4.0% 1,553,615 
OASAS 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
OMH 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
Charity Care 115 0.1% 2 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
Bad Debt 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 
All Other 3,049 1.8% 1,345,022 1,368 1.0% 364,224 1,368 1.0% 382,588 

Total 173,005 100% 62,725,964 136,771 100% 35,821,450 136,771 100% 38,404,823 

Total of Inpatient and 
Outpatient Services 201,022 100% 108,754,983 150,666 100% 63,060,721 150,389 100% 66,266,076 

Title of Attachment Filename of attachment 
1. In an attachment, provide the basis
and supporting calculations for all 
revenues by payor. 

Attachment 10 Schedule 13 D 
Attachment.pdf 

2. In an attachment, provide the basis
for charity care. 
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o Schedule 16 B - Hospital Community Need. 
 

o Schedule 16 C - Impact of CON Application on Hospital 
Operating Certificate  
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o Schedule 16 E - Hospital Utilization  

 
o Schedule 16 F - Hospital Facility Access 
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Schedule 16 A. Hospital Program Information   

See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required. 
 
Instructions: Briefly indicate how the facility intends to comply with state and federal regulations specific to the services 
requested, such as cardiac surgery, bone marrow transplants.  For clinic services, please include the hours of service for 
each day of operation, name of the hospital providing back-up services (indicating the travel time and distance from the 
clinic) and how the facility intends to provide quality oversight including credentialing, utilization and quality assurance 
monitoring.   
 

      

 

 

 

 

 
For Hospital-Based -Ambulatory Surgery Projects:  
Please provide a list of ambulatory surgery categories you intend to provide.   
 
 
List of Proposed Ambulatory Surgery Category 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
For Hospital-Based -Ambulatory Surgery Projects:  
Please provide the following information: 
 

 
Number and Type of Operating Rooms: 

 
 Current:       

 
 To be added:        

 
 Total ORs upon Completion of the Project:        

 
 

Number and Type of Procedure Rooms: 
 

 Current:        
 

 To be added:        
 

 Total Procedure Rooms upon Completion of the Project:        
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Certificate of Need Application 
 
Schedule 16 B. Community Need 
 
See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required. 
 
Public Need Summary: 
Briefly summarize on this schedule why the project is needed.  Use additional paper, as necessary.  If the 
following items have been addressed in the project narrative, please cite the relevant section and pages. 
 
1. Identify the relevant service area (e.g., Minor Civil Division(s), Census Tract(s), street boundaries, Zip 

Code(s), Health Professional Shortage Area (HPSA) etc.) 

      

 
2. Provide a quantitative and qualitative description of the population to be served.  Data may include 

median income, ethnicity, payor mix, etc. 

      

 
3. Document the current and projected demand for the proposed service in the population you plan to 

serve.  If the proposed service is covered by a DOH need methodology, demonstrate how the proposed 
service is consistent with it. 

      

 
4. (a) Describe how this project responds to and reflects the needs of the residents in the community you 

propose to serve. 

      

(b) Describe how this project is consistent with your facility’s Community Service Implementation Plan 
(voluntary not-for-profit hospitals) or strategic plan (other providers). 

      

(c) Will the proposed project serve all patients needing care regardless of their ability to pay or 
the source of payment? If so, please provide such a statement.  

      

 
5. Describe where and how the population to be served currently receives the proposed services. 
 

      

 
6. Describe how the proposed services will be address specific health problems prevalent in the service 

area, including any special experience, programs or methods that will be implemented to address these 
health issues. 
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ONLY For Applicants Seeking Permanent Life  
 
Diagnostic and Treatment Centers seeking approval for indefinite Life MUST provide the following 
information: 
 

Instructions: In the space below, please provide detailed information on the most recent CON 
application that was approved for the limited life.  

 
i. CON number:        

 
ii. Date of approval:        

 
iii. Number of years of limited life approved for:        

 
iv. OpCert number and dates:        

 
v. Please provide a table with information on projections by payor for year 1 and year 3 as 

reported on the approved CON. (Please identify the projections in terms of visits or 
procedures). 

 
vi. Please provide a table with information on actual utilization by payor for each year since the 

implementation of the approved CON.   
 

Note: Please use the same category of payors for actual utilization as those used for projections 
in item ‘v’ above. Also, use the same category (i.e., visits or procedures) for actual utilization 
as those used for projections in item ‘v’ above.  

 
vii. Did you achieve those projections reported in item 'v' above?  

If not, please give reasons for not meeting those projections.   
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C. Impact of CON Application on Hospital Operating Certificate 
 
Name of Active Parent:(if applicable):          
Name of Facility:       
 
Address of Facility:       
 
Note: If the application involves an extension clinic, indicate which services should be added or removed from the certificate of 
the extension clinic alone, rather than for the hospital system as a whole.  If multiple sites are involved, complete a separate 16C 
for each site. 
 
TABLE 16C-1 AUTHORIZED BEDS   
 

Category Code 
Current 
Capacity Add Remove 

Proposed 
Capacity  

AIDS 30                       

BONE MARROW TRANSPLANT 21                       

BURNS CARE 09                       

CHEMICAL DEPENDENCE-DETOX * 12                       

CHEMICAL DEPENDENCE-REHAB * 13                       

COMA RECOVERY 26                       

CORONARY CARE 03                       

INTENSIVE CARE 02                       

MATERNITY 05                       

MEDICAL/SURGICAL 01                       

NEONATAL CONTINUING CARE 27                       

NEONATAL INTENSIVE CARE 28                       

NEONATAL INTERMEDIATE CARE 29                       

PEDIATRIC 04                       

PEDIATRIC ICU 10                       

PHYSICAL MEDICINE & REHABILITATION 07                       

PRISONER          

PSYCHIATRIC** 08                       

RESPIRATORY          

SPECIAL USE          

SWING BED PROGRAM          

TRANSITIONAL CARE 33                       

TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY 11                       

TOTAL                       
  
 *CHEMICAL DEPENDENCE: Requires additional approval by the Office of Alcohol and Substance Abuse Services (OASAS)  
**PSYCHIATRIC: Requires additional approval by the Office of Mental Health (OMH)  
 
Does the applicant have previously submitted Certificate of Need (CON) applications that have 
not been completed involving addition or decertification of beds?    

 No 

 
 Yes (Enter CON numbers to the right)                     
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END STAGE RENAL DISEASE (ESRD) 
 
 
 TABLE 16C-3(a) CAPACITY Existing Add Remove Proposed  
 CHRONIC DIALYSIS 
 
 
If application involves dialysis service with existing capacity, complete the following table: 
 
 
 TABLE 16C-3(b)  TREATMENTS Last 12 mos  2 years prior 3 years prior 
 CHRONIC DIALYSIS                   
 
 
All Chronic Dialysis applicants must provide the following information in compliance with 10 NYCRR 670.6. 

 
1. Provide a five-year analysis of projected costs and revenues that demonstrates that the proposed dialysis services will be 

utilized sufficiently to be financially feasible. 
 

      

 
2. Provide evidence that the proposed dialysis services will enhance access to dialysis by patients, including members of 

medically underserved groups which have traditionally experienced difficulties obtaining access to health care, such as; 
racial and ethnic minorities, women, disabled persons , and residents of remote rural areas. 

 

      

 
3. Provide evidence that the hours of operation and admission policy of the facility will promote the availability of dialysis at 

times preferred by the patients, particularly to enable patients to continue employment.  
 

      

 
4. Provide evidence that the facility is willing to and capable of safely serving patients. 
 

      

 
5. Provide evidence that the proposed facility will not jeopardize the quality of care or the financial viability of existing dialysis 

facilities.  This evidence should be derived from analysis of factors including, but not necessarily limited to current and 
projected referral and use patterns of both the proposed facility and existing facilities.  A finding that the proposed facility will 
jeopardize the financial viability of one or more existing facilities will not of itself require a recommendation to of disapproval. 
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Mobile Clinic Site Approval Request: 
 
One form must be submitted for each proposed mobile clinic site. Please feel free to photocopy this form 
as necessary. You may use attach additional sheets as necessary 
         
Facility Name 

       

Proposed Site Address 

       

CITY COUNTY ZIP 

                     

Type of Facility at Site 

      

Name and Title of Representative at site: 

       

Type of Service  

       

 
Is mobile clinic in a self-contained vehicle or is equipment moved into the temporary site?   

      

 
Schedule of operation  

      

 
Justification for service at this site 

      

 
List of current sites where these services will no longer be offered    
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 Schedule 16 E. Utilization/discharge and patient days 
 
See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required  
 
This schedule is for hospital inpatient projects only.  This schedule is required if hospital discharges or 
patient days will be affected by ± 5% or more, or if this utilization is created for the first time by your 
proposal. 
 
Include only those areas affected by your project.  Current year data, as shown in columns 1 and 2, 
should represent the last complete year before submitting the application.  Enter the starting and ending 
month and year in the column heading. 
 
Forecast the first and third years after project completion.  The first year is the first twelve months of 
operation after project completion.  Enter the starting and ending month and year being reported in the 
column headings. 
 
For hospital establishment applications and major modernizations, submit a summary business plan to 
address operations of the facility upon project completion.  All appropriate assumptions regarding market 
share, demand, utilization, payment source, revenue and expense levels, and related matters should be 
included.  Also, include your strategic plan response to the escalating managed care environment.  
Provide a complete answer and indicate the hospital’s current managed care situation, including 
identification of contracts and services. 
 
Prior versions of this table referred to “incremental” changes in discharges and days.  
Note that the table now requires the full count of discharges and days.  
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Schedule 16 F. Facility Access 
 
See “Schedules Required for Each Type of CON” to determine when this form is required. 
 
Complete Table 1 to indicate the method of payment for inpatients and for inpatients and outpatients who 
were transferred to other health care facilities for the calendar year immediately preceding this 
application.   
Start date of year for which data applies (m/c/yyyy):       
 

Table 1.  Patient 
Characteristics 

Total 
Number of 
Inpatients  

Number of Patients Transferred 

Inpatient OPD ER 
Payment Source 
Medicare                     
Blue Cross                     
Medicaid                     
Title V                     
Workers' Compensation                     
Self Pay in Full                     
Other (incl. Partial Pay)                     
Free                     
Commercial Insurance                     
Total Patients                     

 
Complete Table 2 to indicate the method of payment for outpatients. 
 
Table 2.  Outpatient 
Characteristics 

Emergency Room Outpatient Clinic Community MH Center 

Visits 
Visits Resulting in 

Inpatient 
Admissions 

Visits 
Visits Resulting in 

Inpatient 
Admissions 

Visits 
Visits Resulting in 

Inpatient 
Admissions Primary Payment 

Source 
Medicare                               
Blue Cross                               
Medicaid                               
Title V                               
Workers' Compensation                               
Self Pay in Full                               
Other (incl. Partial Pay)                               
Free                               
Commercial Insurance                               
Total Patients                               
A.  Attach a copy of your discharge planning policy and procedures.    
 
B.  Is your facility a recipient of federal assistance under Title VI or XVI of the Public Health Service? 
     Act (Hill-Burton)? 
   
 Yes  No  
 
     If yes, answer the following questions and attach the most recent report on Hill-Burton compliance 
from the Federal Department of Health and Human Services.   
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          1.  Is your facility currently obligated to provide uncompensated service under the Public    
           Health Service Act?   
 Yes  No           
 

 If yes, provide details on how your facility has met such requirement for the last three fiscal years 
- including notification of the requirement in a newspaper of general circulation.  Also, list any 
restricted trusts and endowments that were used to provide free, below-cost or charity care 
services to persons unable to pay.  

  
      

 
2.  With respect to all or any portion of the facility which has been constructed, modernized, or 
converted with Hill-Burton assistance, are the services provided therein available to all persons 
residing in your facility's service area without discrimination on the basis of race, color, national 
origin, creed, or any basis unrelated to an individual's need for the service or the availability of the 
needed service in the facility? 

   
 Yes  No            
 
          If no, provide an explanation.  
  

      
 
          3.  Does the facility have a policy or practice of admitting only those patients who are referred  
          by physicians with staff privileges at the facility?  
  
 Yes  No            
 

4. Do Medicaid beneficiaries have full access to all of your facility's health services? 
   

 Yes  No  
 
          If no, provide a list of services where access by Medicaid beneficiaries is denied or limited.  

  
      

 
 
















